
If you would like help to understand this document, or would like it in 
another format or language, please call Paul Rogers, Democratic Services 
Officer on 01432 383408 or e-mail progers@herefordshire.gov.uk in 
advance of the meeting. 

 

 

 
 

AGENDA 
 

Herefordshire Schools Forum 

 

Date: Tuesday 29 September 2009 

Time: 2.00 pm 

Place: Brockington, 35 Hafod Road, Hereford. HR11SH 

Notes: Please note the time, date and venue of the meeting. 

For any further information please contact: 

Paul Rogers, Democratic Services Officer 

Tel: 01432 383408 

Email: progers@herefordshire.gov.uk 

 
 

 
 



 

GUIDANCE ON DECLARING PERSONAL AND PREJUDICIAL INTERESTS AT MEETINGS 
 

The Council’s Members’ Code of Conduct requires Councillors to declare against an Agenda item(s) 
the nature of an interest and whether the interest is personal or prejudicial.  Councillors have to 
decide first whether or not they have a personal interest in the matter under discussion.  They will 
then have to decide whether that personal interest is also prejudicial. 

  
A personal interest is an interest that affects the Councillor more than most other people in the area.  
People in the area include those who live, work or have property in the area of the Council.  
Councillors will also have a personal interest if their partner, relative or a close friend, or an 
organisation that they or the member works for, is affected more than other people in the area.  If they 
do have a personal interest, they must declare it but can stay and take part and vote in the meeting.   

 

Whether an interest is prejudicial is a matter of judgement for each Councillor.  What Councillors have 
to do is ask themselves whether a member of the public – if he or she knew all the facts – would think 
that the Councillor’s interest was so important that their decision would be affected by it.  If a 
Councillor has a prejudicial interest then they must declare what that interest is.  A Councillor who 
has declared a prejudicial interest at a meeting may nevertheless be able to address that meeting, 
but only in circumstances where an ordinary member of the public would be also allowed to speak.  In 
such circumstances, the Councillor concerned will have the same opportunity to address the meeting 
and on the same terms.  However, a Councillor exercising their ability to speak in these 
circumstances must leave the meeting immediately after they have spoken. 

 

Agenda for the Meeting of the Herefordshire 
Schools Forum 
  
Membership  
  

Chairman Mrs JS Powell 
Vice-Chairman Mr NPJ Griffiths 
  

Mr S Pugh Primary Schools 
Mr T Edwards Primary Schools 
Mrs J Cecil Primary Schools 
Mr P Box Primary Schools 
Rev D Hyett Primary Schools 
Ms T Kneale Nursery Schools 
Mrs S Woodrow Secondary Schools 
Mr T Knapp Secondary Schools 
Mrs S Catlow-Hawkins Secondary Schools 
Mr J Docherty Secondary Schools 
Mrs S Bailey Special Schools 
Mrs E Christopher Pupil Referral Unit 
Mrs A Robertson Roman Catholic Church 
Mr A Leach Church of England 
Mrs A Pritchard Teacher Staff Representative 
Mr J Godfrey 14-19 Representative 
Mr A Shaw 14-19 Representatives 
Mrs A Jackson Early Years 
Mrs R Lloyd Early Years 
  

 
Councillor JA Hyde Observer 
Councillor PD Price Observer 
Councillor WLS Bowen Observer 
  
  
  

 

Non Voting 



 
HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL  29 SEPTEMBER 2009 

 

 

AGENDA 
 Pages 
   
   
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE     
   
 To receive apologies for absence.  
   
2. NAMED SUBSTITUTES (IF ANY)     
   
 To receive any details of Members nominated to attend the meeting in place 

of a Member of the Forum. 
 

   
3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST     
   
 To receive any declarations of interest by Members in respect of items on 

the Agenda. 
 

   
4. MINUTES   1 - 30  
   
 To approve and sign the Minutes of the meeting held on 7 July 2009.   
   
5. LATE ITEMS/ANY OTHER BUSINESS     
   
 To consider any issues raised as either a late item or any other business.  
   
6. BUDGET WORKING GROUP   31 - 34  
   
 To consider the recommendations of the Budget Working Group meeting of 

25th June 2009. 
 

 

   
7. SCHOOL BALANCES   35 - 38  
   
 To report on School balances at the end of the financial year 2008/2009. 

 
 

   
8. DEDICATED SCHOOLS GRANT   39 - 52  
   
 To inform Schools Forum of the final Dedicated Schools Grant for 2009/10, 

the Outturn for 2008/09 and the rates rebates for the period 2000-2009. 
 

 

   
9. DEVELOPING CAPACITY IN HEREFORDSHIRE GOVERNOR SERVICES   53 - 62  
   
 To request one-off funding allocation for the development of Governor 

support and training resources to meet the demands of this academic year. 
 

 

   
10. WORK PROGRAMME 2009/10   63 - 64  
   
 To consider the Schools Forum work programme 2009/10.  
   





PUBLINF0.DOC 

The Public's Rights to Information and Attendance at 
Meetings  
 
 
YOU HAVE A RIGHT TO:- 
 

• Attend all Council, Cabinet, Committee and Sub-Committee meetings 
unless the business to be transacted would disclose ‘confidential’ or 
‘exempt' information. 

• Inspect agenda and public reports at least five clear days before the date of 
the meeting. 

• Inspect Minutes of the Council and all Committees and Sub-Committees 
and written statements of decisions taken by the Cabinet or individual 
Cabinet Members for up to six years following a meeting. 

• Inspect background papers used in the preparation of public reports for a 
period of up to four years from the date of the meeting.  (A list of the 
background papers to a report is given at the end of each report).  A 
background paper is a document on which the officer has relied in writing 
the report and which otherwise is not available to the public. 

• Access to a public Register stating the names, addresses and wards of all 
Councillors with details of the membership of the Cabinet, of all 
Committees and Sub-Committees. 

• Have a reasonable number of copies of agenda and reports (relating to 
items to be considered in public) made available to the public attending 
meetings of the Council, Cabinet, Committees and Sub-Committees. 

• Have access to a list specifying those powers on which the Council have 
delegated decision making to their officers identifying the officers 
concerned by title. 

• Copy any of the documents mentioned above to which you have a right of 
access, subject to a reasonable charge (20p per sheet subject to a 
maximum of £5.00 per agenda plus a nominal fee of £1.50, for postage).   

• Access to this summary of your rights as members of the public to attend 
meetings of the Council, Cabinet, Committees and Sub-Committees and to 
inspect and copy documents. 



PUBLINF0.DOC 

 

Please Note: 

Agenda and individual reports can be made available in large print, Braille or 
on tape.  Please contact the officer named below in advance of the meeting 
who will be pleased to deal with your request. 

The Council Chamber where the meeting will be held is accessible for visitors 
in wheelchairs, for whom toilets are also available. 

A public telephone is available in the reception area. 

Public Transport links 

Public transport access can be gained to Brockington via bus route 104 
shown in dark grey on the map opposite. The service runs every half hour 
from the hopper bus station at Tesco's in Bewell St (next to the roundabout at 
the junction of Blueschool Street/Victoria St/Edgar St) and the nearest bus 
stop to Brockington is in Old Eign Hill near to its junction with Hafod Road. 
The return journey can be made from the same bus stop. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

If you have any questions about this Agenda, how the Council works or would 
like more information or wish to exercise your rights to access the information 
described above, you may do so by telephoning an officer on 01432 383408 
or by visiting in person during office hours (8.45 a.m. - 5.00 p.m. Monday - 
Thursday and 8.45 a.m. - 4.45 p.m. Friday) at the Council Offices, 
Brockington, 35 Hafod Road, Hereford. 







FIREBROCK0.doc 21.05.97 

COUNTY OF HEREFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 

 

BROCKINGTON, 35 HAFOD ROAD, HEREFORD. 

 

 

 

FIRE AND EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE 

 
 
 

 
In the event of a fire or emergency the alarm bell will ring 
continuously. 

You should vacate the building in an orderly manner through 
the nearest available fire exit. 

You should then proceed to Assembly Point J which is located 
at the southern entrance to the car park.  A check will be 
undertaken to ensure that those recorded as present have 
vacated the building following which further instructions will be 
given. 

Please do not allow any items of clothing, etc. to obstruct any of 
the exits. 

Do not delay your vacation of the building by stopping or 
returning to collect coats or other personal belongings. 





HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL 

MINUTES of the meeting of Herefordshire Schools Forum held at 
Council Chamber, Brockington, 35 Hafod Road, Hereford, HR1 
1SH on Tuesday 7 July 2009 at 2.00 pm 
  

Present: Mrs JS Powell (Chairman) 
Mr NPJ Griffiths (Vice Chairman) 

   
 Mrs S Catlow-Hawkins, Mrs D Coates, Mrs E Christopher, Mr J Docherty, Mrs C 

Garlick, Mr M Harrisson, Rev. D  Hyett, Mr J Godfrey, Mrs A Jackson, Mrs R 
Lloyd, Mrs A Pritchard and Mr R Thomas  

 

  
In attendance: Mrs R Hatherill and Councillor PD Price 
  
  
12. ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN   

 
Mrs JS Powell was nominated and seconded for the Chair. 
 
RESOLVED: That Mrs JS Powell be appointed as the Chair of Herefordshire Schools 
Forum for the ensuing year. 
 
 

13. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   
 
Apologies for absence were received from Mr T Edwards, Ms T Kneale, Mr P Whitcombe, Mr 
T Knapp and Ms S Woodrow. 
 

14. NAMED SUBSTITUTES (IF ANY)   
 
Mrs D Coates substituted for Ms T Kneale. 
 

15. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

16. MINUTES   
 
RESOLVED: That, subject to the following amendments, the Minutes of the meeting 
held on 2 June 2009 be approved as a correct record and signed by the Chairman, 
 

(i) the word ‘together’ in Resolution (a) to Minute no.10 be deleted; 
 

(ii) the word ‘high’ be substituted with the word ‘all’ in the Resolution to 
Minute no.11. 

 
17. LATE ITEMS/ANY OTHER BUSINESS   

 
There were no late items or any other business. 
 
 
 
 

18. FINANCE REVIEW REPORT   

AGENDA ITEM 4

1



 

 
The Forum received an independent report on Schools Funding issues for consideration 
and report back to the Schools’ Task Group. 
 
Prior to considering the report, the Forum received a power point presentation by the 
Director of Children’s Services with regard to Schools’ Revenue Funding and Children’s 
Revenue Funding. The Director referred to concern that had been raised by members at 
previous Forum meetings on the complexities of Schools funding and informed members 
that the presentation was intended to provide members with a better understanding of 
schools revenue funding and greater transparency. A copy of the power point 
presentation is attached to the Minutes.  
 
The presentation covered the funding sources for schools and other services to Children 
and Young People (CYP), Dedicated Schools Grant, the division of funding to schools 
and other services, and grants including Standards fund and Area Based Grant. 
Budgetary values based on 2009/10 financial year for the funding sources were also set 
out.  
 
The Director also circulated at the meeting the following information in support of the 
presentation, copies of which are attached to the Minutes: 
 

(a) Local Authority Expenditure including Area based Grant - Appendix 1 
 

(b) Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) 2009/10 - Appendix 2 
 

(c) Grants 2009/10 – Appendix 3 
 

(d) Area Based Grant (ABG) 2009/10 Allocations – Appendix 4 
 

(e) Standards Fund Grants 2008 – 2011 – Department for Children, Schools 
and Families (DCSF) Publication 

 
 
The Director emphasised that Appendix 1 gave a separation of this years financial 
figures for all Council funded central services for CYP. Appendix 2 specified the services 
paid for from the DSG provisional allocation and specified the Direct School Grants. 
Appendix 3 gave a breakdown of all the grants which were also referred to in the 
presentation.  
 
The Director informed the Forum that it was the intention in future to present financial 
information to the Forum in a sharper format. This would include an annual spreadsheet 
showing central Funding, DSG and retained elements, ABG and other grants. Forum 
decisions and the impact of those decisions would also be included in that information. 
 
A member referred to the situation where the local authority makes the decisions to 
close schools and that schools must adhere to such decisions. The member asked if 
there was a centrally held funds target figure set by the Local Authority to reduce spend. 
 
The Director confirmed that should the Authority decide to close schools at any point in 
the future the funding would be returned to the schools ISB and levels agreed by the 
Forum. In emphasising that there was not a target to reduce central spend specifically; 
the Director informed members that there was a need to achieve good value in delivering 
core services. The Director also emphasised there was a delicate balance in achieving 
funding levels and achieving good value. There would need to be consultation and 
debate with the Forum on those issues if any configuration of central services to schools 
were to change. 
 

2



 

The Director also emphasised was a delicate balance in achieving funding levels and 
achieving good value. There would need to be consultation and debate with the Forum 
on those issues. 
 
A member asked why Herefordshire was one of the lowest educationally funded 
authorities.  
 
The Director informed the Forum that the factors which the government considered when 
allocating funds were deprivation and high pupil density. Both factors were prevalent in 
urban areas and, therefore, such areas attracted more government funds.  
 
The member took the view that parents and the public should be made aware of such 
funding issues. 
 
The Chairman referred to Children’s and Young Peoples Directorate central costs and 
that there was a degree of uncertainty in schools as to where funds come from. 
 
The Director responded and referred members to the appendices for details. 
 
The Chairman welcomed Lynn Wright, Independent Consultant, who had been asked by 
the Schools’ Task Group to consider the way forward on Schools funding issues and 
demonstrated the impact of maintaining the status quo as well as considering the 
implications of any future changes. 
 
The Consultant emphasised that the report did not refer to schools by name and that all 
scenarios were hypothetical. The DCSF was currently reviewing the pupil funding 
formula but there was doubt that this might have little real beneficial impact in 
Herefordshire. She referred to paragraph 4 and the fact that Herefordshire was one of 
the lowest funding levels of the nationally distributed DSG. She drew members’ attention 
to paragraph 5 iii, iv and v which highlighted the impact on funding with the loss of one 
pupil and the sum of money which would need to be found from within central services 
funded by DSG as a consequence. Also, the cost escalation of the loss of more than one 
pupil which could have a disproportionate affect on primary schools.  
 
A member asked if there were opportunities to arrange some services differently which 
are currently centrally held and therefore delegate funding to schools for these purposes. 
The Director of Children’s Services agreed but emphasised that some services were 
statutory and also that the LA held a key role in quality assurance. Any such changes 
would need further debate with schools and careful consideration. The consequences of 
allocating money should be considered carefully, because once allocations were made, 
such actions were difficult to reverse. 
 
The Consultant made reference to the increase in the numbers of schools experiencing 
financial difficulties and operating with deficit budgets. She also referred to Appendix 2 to 
her report where she was trying to show the full budget allocations of schools banded in 
sizes. She drew members’ attention to the fact that 69 schools in the county receive 
some sort of protection which had been agreed by the Forum and that the funding for 
this came from schools with greater pupil numbers. The emphasis being that all schools 
are affected by reducing rolls. She referred to the fixed base allocation that primary and 
secondary schools receive for management and premises before pupil numbers are 
considered and paragraph 11 endeavoured to show objectively the consequences of the 
fixed base allocation. She emphasised that a combination of reductions in expenditure 
achieved through the possible reduction in the number of schools would mean that those 
funds would remain within the Individual Schools Budget for redistribution via the funding 
formula across a smaller number of schools. With regard to Appendix 1 to the report, she 
stated that Herefordshire compares favourably with neighbouring councils in retaining 
less at the centre than most. Referring to Appendix 3, she informed members that the 

3



 

table demonstrated the affect of falling rolls on individual schools over a three year 
period and the indicative budgets according to cluster allocations using January 2008 
pupil numbers. The model would be updated using January 2009 numbers at the end of 
September. 
 
A Member drew attention to the fact that funding was in place until 2011 and that the 
Task Group notice this for discussion.  The Director agreed with the point made. She 
advised the members that the Task Group had found this funding aspect quite complex 
and particularly wanted the Forum to discuss this aspect and comment to the Group. 
 
The Director advised that the purpose was to bring the detailed information to members 
with a view to the Forum discussing how future decisions can be considered. 
 
The Consultant emphasised that the report shows that it will not be possible to maintain 
the status quo but that some changes must be made to enable children to receive the 
best education possible. 
 
A member expressed concern that if the current allocation of funding was maintained, it 
would be at enormous cost to schools. 
 
The Consultant was of the view that resources for the provision of education in 
Herefordshire were currently overstretched and not sustainable in the medium term. 
 
The Director advised that the current funding system was creaking at the edges in its 
entirety and it would mean an open and transparent debate in many forums to address 
the issues. The Schools Task Group was addressing the problem. 
 
A member referred to the recent article in the local press which stated that as a 
consequence of decisions taken at today’s meeting of the Forum, some schools will 
close. She suggested that a public statement be made to advise the public on the 
current situation with regard to schools. 
 
The Director informed members that she would consult Councillor PD Price, Cabinet 
member for ICT, Education and Achievement together with the Chairman of the Forum 
to make a public statement. 
 
The Consultant emphasised that there is a need to formulate a view at Cabinet level and 
Task Group level and to achieve a vision for children. 
 
 
RESOLVED: That as trends in falling pupil numbers and attendant reductions in 
funding will require a re-evaluation of existing provision necessitating 
consideration of a schools reorganisation, the Schools Forum is therefore looking 
to Cabinet to provide a lead on how this issue can be taken forward and that the 
lead should be clarified by the Cabinet within the next financial year. 
 
 

19. REVISED CONSTITUTION FOR SCHOOLS FORUM   
 
The Head of Planning Policy and Performance presented a report regarding the 
proposed revision of the constitution. He advised that following on from the last meeting, 
the constituent bodies had been consulted and their comments were included in the 
report. He informed members that he would ensure that School Finance would be 
included in induction training for new members as a key issue. 
 

4



 

A teacher staff representative informed the Forum that at a recent meeting of teaching 
staff, the meeting was of the view that their representation on the Forum should remain 
at two, one representative for primary schools and one for secondary schools. 
 
An Early Years and Extended Services Member supported the need for the 
representation for early years to remain at two members and that in reducing the 
proposed membership to one member would not give adequate representation on the 
Forum to serve all the providers and children. 
 
A 14 -19 partnership representative strongly supported the need for two members on the 
Forum for the reasons as set out in the report. 
 
The Head of Planning Policy and Performance informed members that the new 
membership would be phased in for current members taking into account their remaining 
term of office. He advised that there would be consultation between Financial Services 
and the Budget Review Working Group to formulate a Forward Plan.  
 
 
RESOLVED: That, subject to the following amendments, the proposed revised 
constitution as attached to the report be approved to take effect on 1 September 
2009: 
 

(i) the Teaching Association representation be deleted to be replaced  
with one primary school Trade Union representative and one 
secondary school Trade Union  representative; 

 
(ii) there will be two Early Years and Extended Services 

representatives; 
 

(iii) there will be two 14-19 Partnership representatives;  
 

(iv) Herefordshire Association for Secondary Headteachers will be set 
the Term of office for their representatives to comply with a 
maximum three year term of office. 

 
 
 
 

The meeting ended at 3.15 pm CHAIRMAN 

5



6



S
c

h
o

o
ls

 F
o

ru
m

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 P

O
W

E
R

 P
O

IN
T

  
 

P
R

E
S

E
N

T
A

T
IO

N

J
u

ly
 2

0
0

9

7



U
n

d
e
rs

ta
n

d
in

g
 C

h
il
d

re
n

’s
 a

n
d

 

S
c
h

o
o

ls
’
R

e
v
e
n

u
e
 F

u
n

d
in

g
 

W
e
 w
ill
 c
o
v
e
r:

•F
u
n
d
in
g
 s
o
u
rc
e
s
 f
o
r 
s
c
h
o
o
ls
 a
n
d
 o
th
e
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
o
 C
Y
P

•D
S
G

•H
o
w
 m
u
c
h
 %
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 i
s
 a
llo
c
a
te
d
 t
o
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 a
n
d
 o
th
e
r 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s

•G
ra
n
ts
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 S
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 F
u
n
d
 a
n
d
 A
re
a
 B
a
s
e
d
 G
ra
n
t

•N
B
: 
a
ll 
fi
g
u
re
s
 a
re
 2
0
0
9
-1
0

8



C
o
u
n
c
il 

fu
n
d
in
g
 

fr
o
m
 

ta
x
e
s
 a
n
d
 

g
o
v
t-
in
c
. 

g
ra
n
ts
 

a
n
d
 D
S
G

D
S
G

C
e
n
tr
a
l 
D
S
G
  

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
o

s
c
h
o
o
ls

A
ll 
C
o
u
n
c
il 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

C
e
n
tr
a
l 
C
Y
P
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
o
 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

P
a
s
s
p
o
rt
e
d

D
S
G

M
a
in
 f
u
n
d
in
g

9



C
o
u
n
c
il 

fu
n
d
in
g
 

fr
o
m
 

ta
x
e
s
 a
n
d
 

g
o
v
t-
in
c
. 

g
ra
n
ts
 

a
n
d
 D
S
G

D
S
G

C
e
n
tr
a
l 
D
S
G

A
ll
 C
o
u
n
c
il 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

C
e
n
tr
a
l 
C
Y
P
D
 

E
le
m
e
n
t 
=
 £
2
4
.8
m
 

(e
x
c
l.
 A
B
G
) 

=
 £
7
.9
m

P
a
s
s
p
o
rt
e
d

D
S
G
 =

£
7
6
.5
m
 

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

T
o
ta
l 
D
S
G
 

£
8
4
.4
m

M
o
re
 d
e
ta
il 

10



C
Y
P
D
 c
e
n
tr
a
l 
c
o
s
ts

E
x
a
m

p
le

s
 –

d
e
ta

il
s
 t

o
 f

o
ll
o

w

S
p

e
c
if

ic
 t

o
 S

c
h

o
o

l 
S

u
p

p
o

rt
S

p
e
c
if

ic
 t

o
 O

th
e
r 

C
Y

P
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

e
.g
.

e
.g
.

•
E
W
S
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

•
Y
o
u
th
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
  
  
  
  
  
 

•
S
IS
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

•
S
o
c
ia
l 
c
a
re

•
T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

•
F
o
s
te
ri
n
g
  
 

•
E
d
 P
s
y
c
h
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

•
S
E
N
 C
a
s
e
w
o
rk
  
  
  
  
  
 

•
A
s
s
e
t 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
  
 

•
S
o
c
ia
l 
w
o
rk
e
rs
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

•
R
e
s
id
e
n
ti
a
l 
C
a
re

•
F
a
m
ily
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 i
n
c
l
A
d
o
p
ti
o
n

•
C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g

•
C
o
n
n
e
x
io
n
s

11



C
e
n
tr
a
l 
D
S
G

N
u
rs
. 
E
d
 3
.4
%

S
E
N
 2
.1
%

In
d
s
p
e
c
 s
c
h
0
.9
%

U
n
d
e
r 
5
s
 0
.6
%

P
R
U
s
1
.1
%

E
d
u
c
a
te
d
 o
u
t 
o
f 

s
c
h
o
o
l 
0
.4
%

A
llo
c
a
ti
o
n
s

%
 a
re
 

d
e
c
id
e
d
 b
y
 

fo
rm
u
la
/ 

d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 o
f 

S
c
h
o
o
ls
 

F
o
ru
m

N
B
: 
fi
g
s
 a
re
 

ro
u
n
d
e
d
 -
re
fe
r 

to
 a
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 f
o
r 

fu
ll 
b
re
a
k
d
o
w
n

P
ri
m
a
ry
 I
S
B
 

4
6
.0
%

S
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry
 

IS
B
 4
2
.9
%
 -

2
.7
%
 L
S
C
 =
 

4
0
.2
%

S
p
e
c
ia
l 
IS
B
 

4
.5
%

T
o
ta
l 
9
0
.6
%

T
o
ta
l 
£
7
6
.5
m

S
c
h
o
o
ls
’
D
S
G

D
ir
e
c
t 
to
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 

g
ra
n
ts
 £
1
2
.2
m
 

O
th
e
r 
F
u
n
d
in
g

T
o
ta
l 
8
.5
%

A
d
m
is
s
io
n
s
 /
 

b
e
h
a
v
io
u
r
/ 
L
E
A
 

p
o
o
l 
 /
 i
n
c
lu
s
io
n
 

0
.9
%

T
o
ta
l 
9
.4
%

£
7
.9
m

A
B
G
£
4
.1
m

O
th
e
r 
S
F
 n
o
t 

d
e
v
o
lv
e
d
 £
3
.2
m

C
o
u
n
c
il 
fu
n
d
e
d
 C
Y
P
 

£
2
4
.8
m
 

(i
n
c
 p
ro
p
e
rt
y
 &
 

o
v
e
rh
e
a
d
s
)

12



D
ir
e
c
t 

G
ra
n
ts
 t
o
 

L
A

S
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 

fu
n
d
s
-

n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

s
tr
a
te
g
ie
s
/

o
th
e
r 

R
e
c
e
iv
in
g
 

s
c
h
o
o
l(
s
)

W
o
rk
 w
it
h
 o
th
e
r 

p
a
rt
n
e
rs

O
th
e
r 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
o
 

C
Y
P

D
ir
e
c
t 
S
F
 

G
ra
n
ts
 t
o
 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

R
e
m
e
m
b
e
r 

s
o
m
e
 o
f 

th
e
s
e
 w
ill
 b
e
 

s
p
e
c
if
ic
/r
in
g
 

fe
n
c
e
d

D
e
c
is
io
n
s
 

fo
r 
s
p
e
n
d
 

w
ill
 b
e
 

a
g
a
in
s
t 
k
e
y
 

p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 i
n
 

C
Y
P
 p
la
n

C
Y
P
D
 

d
ir
e
c
to
ra
te
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s

O
th
e
r 
fu
n
d
in
g

13



M
o
re
 d
e
ta
ils
 o
f 
g
ra
n
ts
 

S
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 

fu
n
d
s

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

S
c
h
o
o
l 

F
u
n
d
in
g
, 
e
.g
. 

S
D
G

A
B
G

S
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 r
u
le
s
/ 

c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 o
f 

p
ri
o
ri
ty
 b
y
 H
S
P

C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 

T
ru
s
t 

S
c
h
o
o
ls
 

O
th
e
r 
C
Y
P
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s

O
th
e
r 
g
ra
n
ts
 

to
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 

14



M
a
in

s
tr

e
a
m

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
 (

in
c
l
A

c
a
d

e
m

y
) 

D
S

G
 –

P
u

p
il
 F

o
rm

u
la

P
ri

m
a
ry

 
S

e
c
o

n
d

a
ry

A
g
e
 W
e
ig
h
te
d
 P
u
p
il 
N
u
m
b
e
rs

£
2
7
.6
m
  
  
  
  
7
1
%

£
2
9
.2
m
  
  
  
  
  
  
7
5
%

A
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
P
u
p
il 
F
u
n
d
in
g

L
S
C
 S
ix
th
 F
o
rm
 F
u
n
d
in
g

£
1
.8
m
  
  
  
  
  
 5
%

£
0
m
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
0
%

£
1
.2
m
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 3
%

£
2
.3
m
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 6
%

S
E
N
 &
 B
a
n
d
e
d
 F
u
n
d
in
g
 

£
2
.3
m
  
  
  
  
  
 6
%

£
2
.0
m
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 5
%

A
E
N
 –
S
o
c
ia
l 
D
e
p
ri
v
a
ti
o
n

S
it
e
 S
p
e
c
if
ic
 F
a
c
to
rs

£
1
.1
m
  
  
  
  
  
 3
%

£
0
.1
m
  
  
  
  
  
  
0
%

£
1
.1
m
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 3
%

£
0
.0
m
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 0
%

S
c
h
o
o
l 
S
p
e
c
if
ic
 -
F
ix
e
d
 c
o
s
ts

M
in
im
u
m
 F
u
n
d
in
g
 G
u
a
ra
n
te
e

£
5
.8
m
  
  
  
  
 1
5
%

£
0
.1
m
  
  
  
  
  
 0
%

£
3
.2
m
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 8
%

£
0
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
0
%

T
o

ta
l 
F

u
n

d
in

g
 £

7
7
.8

m
 l
e
s
s
  

£
2
.8

m
 A

c
a
d

e
m

y
 +

£
3
.8

m
 S

p
e
c
ia

ls
 -

£
2
.3

m
 L

S
C

 =
 £

7
6
.5

m
 M

a
in

s
tr

e
a
m

 

s
c
h

o
o

ls
 D

S
G

.

£
3
8
.8
m
  
  
  
 1
0
0
%

£
3
9
.0
m
  
  
  
  
  
1
0
0
%

15



C
o
m
p
a
ri
n
g
 H
e
re
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 s
p
e
n
d
 2
0
0
8
-9
 (
in
c
l
g
ra
n
ts
)

L
o

c
a
l 

A
u

th
o

ri
ty

H
e
re

fo
rd

s
h

ir
e

C
e
n

tr
a
ll

y
 h

e
ld

 D
S

G
 

3
rd

L
o

w
e
s
t 

  
  

 (
£
)

D
S

G
 t

o
 s

c
h

o
o

ls

3
rd

H
ig

h
e
s
t 

 (
£
)

C
o
rn
w
a
ll

8
8
8

3
,8
5
1

S
h
ro
p
s
h
ir
e

8
8
5

3
,7
0
3

E
a
s
t 
S
u
s
s
e
x

7
5
4

3
,8
9
3

G
lo
u
c
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e

7
0
8

3
,7
6
7

D
o
rs
e
t

6
4
2

3
,8
6
1

W
ilt
s
h
ir
e

6
3
5

3
,7
7
0

S
o
m
e
rs
e
t

6
2
5

3
,7
4
0

D
e
v
o
n

5
5
7

3
,8
1
4

H
e
re
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e

5
3
2

3
,8
7
9

N
o
rf
o
lk

4
6
5

4
,0
0
1

S
u
ff
o
lk

4
3
7

3
,8
1
9

16



C
o
m
p
a
ri
n
g
 s
p
e
n
d
 2
0
0
8
-9
 (
in
c
l
g
ra
n
ts
)

L
o

w
e
s
t 

F
u

n
d

e
d

L
o

c
a
l 

A
u

th
o

ri
ti

e
s

C
e
n

tr
a
ll

y
 h

e
ld

 

D
S

G
 

(£
)

D
S

G
 t

o
 

s
c
h

o
o

ls (£
)

S
o
u
th
 G
lo
u
c
e
s
te
r 
  
 1
4
8
th

6
1
6

3
,6
7
7

L
e
ic
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
  
  
  
  
 1
4
9
th

5
9
0

3
,7
4
4

H
e
re
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
  
  
  
  
 1
4
7
th

5
3
2

3
,8
7
9

W
o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
  
  
  
 1
4
0
th

4
5
6

3
,8
6
9

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
A
v
e
ra
g
e

6
3
3

4
,1
7
8

T
o
w
e
r 
H
a
m
le
ts
  
  
  
  
 2
n
d

1
,0
2
0

6
,5
2
5

17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



 

 
Further information on the subject of this report is available from 

Malcolm Green (01432) 260818 
  

290909ReportofTheBudgetWorkingGroupfinal0.doc 26Nov08 

MEETING: SCHOOLS FORUM 

DATE: 29TH SEPTEMBER 2009 

TITLE OF REPORT: REPORT OF THE BUDGET WORKING GROUP 25TH 
JUNE 2009 

FINANCIAL 

SERVICES 

MALCOLM GREEN 

CLASSIFICATION: Open  

Wards Affected 

County-wide  

Purpose 

To consider the recommendations of the Budget Working Group meeting of 25th June 2009. 

Key Decision  

This is not a Key Decision.  

Recommendation 

 THAT Schools Forum: 

 Approves the deletion of the following four factors from the funding formula for 
primary and high schools for 2010/11 

1. Extended Schools  

2. Site Specific – Pre-fabrication buildings 

3. Site Specific – Exposed Location 

4. School Specific – Kitchens on Site 

Key Points Summary 

• Extended Schools factor (£152k) – is less relevant as activities are now funded significantly 
from other sources (e.g. Standards Fund and Area Based Grant) 

• The other three factors ( £8k) – allocate a small amount of money 

AGENDA ITEM 6

31



Alternative Options 

1  The alternative options are that the funding factors are not deleted from the funding formula or 
deferred until April 2011 when other formula changes arising from this review may be 
implemented.  

 The Budget Working Group considered that these factors in the formula allocate a small 
amount of money or are now less relevant and could be removed with little impact on the 
schools affected.  Any significant changes to funding would be mitigated by the Minimum 
Funding Guarantee. 

Reasons for Recommendations 

2 Recommendations from the Budget Working Group of 25th June 2009. 

Introduction and Background 

3 The Budget Working group was tasked by Forum to review the current funding formula  with a 
view to presenting recommendations to Schools Forum for implementation by April 2011 
Schools Forum Minute 83 also invited proposals for formula amendments in exceptional 
circumstances for immediate implementation if considered desirable by the Budget Working 
Group.   

Key Considerations 

REVIEW OF HEREFORDSHIRE SCHOOLS FUNDING FORMULA 

1. Review of Current Formula 

The Group discussed the merits of the current formula and it was generally agreed that the 
approach was sensible.  A curriculum/activity based approach was rejected as changing 
curriculum requirements may cause swings in funding and it was likely to be too costly. 

The Group reviewed a summary of the existing formula factors to identify which elements 
should be subject to further investigation and which could be adjusted for April 2010. 

2. Factors Discussed in Detail 
 

AWPU (Age Weighted Pupil Unit) 

There is a historical Department for Children, Schools and Families requirement that the 
AWPU accounts for in excess of 70% of total funding although it was noted that this has to 
some extent been superseded by Central Expenditure Limit controls. 

As part of the review Malcolm Green will investigate AWPUs for comparable local authorities 
and advise the Group how we compare.  The Group will also consider whether the differences 
in primary and high school funding are appropriate, particularly the differences between years 
6 and 7. 

Class Size Grant 

Despite being a small amount of money (£204k) it was agreed that the current allocation 
method provides an effective focus in allocating funds where needed.  It was noted that the 
allocation assumes no mixing of KS1 and KS2 pupils, and that the Group did not know to what 

32



extent classes were mixed in small schools. 

 Social Deprivation - Personalised Learning Free School Meals (FSM)% 

The current formula accounts for 50% of the total funding for Social Deprivation and the use of 
FSM% means that a small change in numbers causes a disproportionate change in funding.  
Further clarification of the formula is required to determine why there is a difference between 
primary (£24.52) and high (£89.87) funding factors. 

Social Deprivation factors will be subject to a more detailed review, to include the 
consideration of cash limiting funding and reducing the emphasis of using FSM factors. 

Small Schools Curriculum Protection 

It was acknowledged that whilst this factor did need reviewing it was likely to some extent to 
be affected by the Schools’ Task Group review.  79% of primary schools and 54% of high 
schools receive funding through this factor and the Group will consider whether the current 
parameters (200 pupils for primary and 655 for high) are appropriate for Herefordshire 
schools. 

SEN Hours Above 10/Midday Supervision 

Affects only a few schools and the factors allocate £17k in total.  The Group will consider 
whether allocation can cease for April 2010 or whether it is more appropriate for funding to 
drop off as pupils leave. Most pupils are expected to leave in July 2009. 

School Specific – Management/Premises Flat Rates 

The flat rates represent fixed costs and the Group will consider whether it is feasible to 
increase the flat rates which should reduce the need for small schools protection funding. 

Teachers’ Pay Grant 

It was agreed that schools had little choice in paying the upper pay scale and it is therefore 
appropriate that funding continues. 

PFI Factor – Whitecross High School 

The Group questioned why £172k relating to the PFI factor was paid from the Dedicated 
Schools’ Grant when it was the Council’s responsibility to pay it. 

Budget Adjustment – Learning Skills Council 

The Group asked that an alternative method of presentation of the LSC budget adjustment be 
considered to avoid it showing as a negative allocation. 

3. Factors Recommended for Removal From April 2010 
 

Some factors in the formula allocate a small amount of money or are now less relevant and it 
was agreed that to simplify the formula factors they could be removed with little impact on the 
schools affected.  Any significant changes to funding would be mitigated by the Minimum 
Funding Guarantee. 

Extended Schools (£152k) 

33



Funding was originally provided from the Dedicated Schools Grant to fund a co-ordinator for 
each partnership but it was considered that Extended Schools activities are now funded 
significantly from other sources (e.g. Standards Fund and Area Based Grant).  Employment of 
a co-ordinator is not mandatory. 

Site Specific – Pre-fabricated buildings 

Less than £3k is allocated with the majority of qualifying schools receiving under £200 

Site Specific – Exposed Location 

Allocated less than £1k in 2009/10 across three schools 

School Specific – Kitchens on Site 

Schools are allocated £182 if they have a kitchen on site and the total allocation in 2009/10 
was only £4k. 

Community Impact 

4 None assessed. 

Financial Implications 

5 The proposed deletion of the four factors will permit approximately £160,000 to be reallocated 
as part of the 2010/11 Schools Budget. 

Legal Implications 

6 These proposals comply with the council’s legal duties. 

Risk Management 

7   There is a small risk that some schools may be disadvantaged by the withdrawl of these 
formula factors however any significant changes to funding would be mitigated by the 
Minimum Funding Guarantee as required by DCSF. Schools Forum will consider the full 
2010/11Schools Budget including the possible re-allocation of this £160,000   

Consultees 

8 There is a statutory requirement that Schools Forum is consulted on local authority proposals 
for formula changes. No further consultation other than Schools Forum is required.  

Appendices 

9 None 

Background Papers 

Agenda and reports of the Schools Forum Budget Working Group 25th June 2009. 

 

34



 

 
Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Malcolm Green, Schools Finance Manager on (01432) 260818 

  

290909SchoolBalancesNewtemplatefinal0.doc 26Nov08 

MEETING: SCHOOLS FORUM 

DATE: 29TH SEPTEMBER 2009 

TITLE OF REPORT: SCHOOL BALANCES MARCH 2009 

FINANCIAL  

SERVICES 

MALCOLM GREEN 

CLASSIFICATION: Open 

Wards Affected 

County-wide – All Schools 

Purpose 

To report on School balances at the end of the financial year 2008/2009. 

Key Decision  

This is not a Key Decision.  

Recommendation(s) 

 THAT School Forum is asked to: 

a note the decrease in school revenue balances of 0.4%; 

b and in particular note the reduction in primary balances by £246,000 from 
2007/08  

c the Budget Working group be asked to consider a further report on 
schools capital balances and spending plans 

Key Points Summary 

• Herefordshire schools revenue balances have reduced from 12% of budget in 2004/05 to 6.5% 
in 2009/10. 

• Capital balances have risen in primary schools by over £0.75m an increase of almost 50% since 
March 2008. 

Alternative Options 

1 There are no alternative options for consideration. 

AGENDA ITEM 7

35



Reasons for Recommendations 

2 School Revenue Balances have been reducing since 2004/05 and plans are in hand to for 
2009/10 and 2010/11. School Capital Balances have been rising and have not been subject to 
the same scrutiny either nationally or locally. 

Introduction and Background 

3 The Department for Children, Schools and Families continues to be concerned at the high 
level of school balances held nationally. School balances nationally were £1.86 billion at the 
end of March 2008 compared to £680 million in 1999/2000. Nationally school balances rose by 
£241 million in 2007/08 equivalent to an increase of 14%. Locally both the Council and 
Schools Forum have been concerned about the increasing levels of balances within 
Herefordshire schools in recent years. The introduction of the balance clawback scheme in 
2006/07 has had a significant impact in reducing the level of schools revenue balances. 
Further changes to tighten the clawback scheme are to be introduced for 2009/10 and 
additional amendments for 2010/11 are to be considered by Forum’s budget working group. 

Key Considerations 

4 Herefordshire has been successful in reducing the level of balances from a high point of 12% 
in 2004/05. However Herefordshire is still above the average of our statistical neighbours and 
the all-England average.  Information from the Audit Commission’s school balances tool is set 
out in the table below. It is intended that the changes to the clawback scheme will further 
reduce Herefordshire balances so that we become closer to the All England Average. Given 
the number of smaller schools and the inclusion of the £30,000 balance allowance for smaller 
schools, rather than 5%, then Herefordshire will probably always be slighter higher in 
percentage terms than our statistical neighbours.   

Year Percentage 
of Individual 
Schools 
Budget (%) 

Statistical 
Neighbours 
average  (%) 

All England 
Average  

(%) 

2002/03 7.0 6.8 6.1 

2003/04 9.6 6.8 6.4 

2004/05 12.0 6.3 6.9 

2005/06 11.4 6.1 6.6 

2006/07 6.1 4.0 4.4 

2007/08 6.5 4.6 5.3 

2008/09 6.5 n/a n/a 

 

 

 

5 School balances at the end of the financial year 2008/2009 have now been calculated and are 

36



compared to the balances at the end of 2007/2008 in the following table.  

Revenue  Balances as 
at March 09 

£ 

Balances as 
at March 08 

£ 

Difference 
 
£ 

Difference 
 

% 

Primary  2,936,242 3,182,380 -246,138 -0.8 

High 1,991,718 2,031,016 -39,298 -0.2 

Specials 64,492 20,683 +43,809 +211.8 

Pupil Referral Units 93,940 46,413 +47,527 +102.4 

Total Revenue  5,086,392 5,280,492 -194,100 -0.4 

 

Extended Schools Balances as 
at March 09  

£ 

Balances as 
at March 08  

£ 

Difference 
 

£ 

Difference 
 

% 

Primary 104,259 79,227 +25,032 +31.6 

High 294,289 302,016 -7,727 -2.6 

Special (8,646) (4,498) -4,148 -92.2 

Total Ext Schools  389,902 376,745 +13,157 +3.5 

Total Revenue +    
Ext  Schools 

5,476,294 5,657,237 -180,943 -0.3 

              

Capital Balances as 
at March 09  

£ 

Balances as 
at March 08  

£ 

Difference 
 

£ 

Difference 
 

% 

Primary  2,460,413 1,677,994 +782,419 +46.6 

High 458,498 1,037,018 -578,520 -55.8 

Specials 341,356 195,587 +145,769 +74.5 

Pupil Referral Units 95,862 95,164 +698 0 

Total Capital 3,356,129 3,005,763 +350,366 +11.7 

             

GRAND TOTAL 

8,832,423 8,663,000 +169,423 +1.95 

 

 

6 Overall revenue balances have decreased by £194,100 this year equivalent to -0.4% since 

37



March 2008.  Schools’ revenue balances are now 6.5% of the Individual School Budget, 
overall slightly higher than the 5% level recommended by DCSF and Ofsted. Primary balances 
are 7.9% of primary budgets and high school balances are 5.5%. There has been no claw-
back of revenue balances from any school in 2008/09 however the clawback scheme has 
been tightened for 2009/10 and will potentially tighten further in 2010/11. 

7 Capital balances have increased to £3.36m, an increase of £350,000 equivalent to 11.7%. 
Capital balances have risen in primary schools by over £0.75m an increase of almost 50% 
whilst high school capital balances have reduced by almost £600k, a reduction of 55%. This 
supports the analysis that primary schools are “capital rich and revenue poor” as a result of 
recent changes to government grants from revenue to capital i.e. the transfer of ICT from 
standards fund revenue grants to capital grants such as Harnessing Technology and Devolved 
Formula Capital.  

8 Schools are now required to complete capital budget plans and return to the Council alongside 
their revenue budget plans. These capital plans will be analysed to ensure that schools have 
appropriate plans in place for their capital balances.  

Community Impact 

9 None. 

Financial Implications 

10 No financial implications. 

Legal Implications 

11 It is confirmed that these proposals are consistent with the Council's legal duties 

 

Risk Management 

12 There is a significant risk that if school balances do not reduce nationally then the Department 
for Children, Schools and Families will introduce a statutory national balance clawback 
scheme in order to ensure school balances are reduced. Herefordshire Council has been 
successful in reducing school balances in county schools since 2005/05 and has further 
proposals in hand for 2009/10 and 2010/11. 

Consultees 

13 None. 

Appendices 

14 None. 

Background Papers 

Audit Commission School Balances Tool June 2005 & March 2008. 

Schools Forum 2nd June 2008 –Report on School Balances March 2008 

38



 

 
Further information on the subject of this report is available from 

Malcolm Green, Schools Finance Manager (01432) 260818 
  

290909DSGBudgetOutturnnewtemplatefinal1509090.doc 26Nov08 

MEETING: SCHOOLS FORUM 

DATE: 29TH SEPTEMBER 2009 

TITLE OF REPORT: DEDICATED SCHOOLS GRANT 

FINANCIAL  

SERVICES  

MALCOLM GREEN 

CLASSIFICATION: Open  

Wards Affected 

County-wide  

Purpose 

To inform Schools Forum of the final Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) for 2009/10, the Outturn for 
2008/09 and the rates rebates for the period 2000-2009.  

Key Decision  

This is not a Key Decision.  

Recommendation(s) 

 THAT Schools Forum: 

(a) to note the final DSG settlement and the increase of 2.6% in the Individual Schools Budget; 
 

(b) to comment on any of the budget lines in the Section 52 Budget Statement as appropriate.  

(c) that the proposals for the use of the 2008/09 underspend (including the rates rebates) as set 
out in paragraph 16B and 19C be recommended to the Cabinet Member for ICT, Education 
and Achievement for approval in principle and; 

(d) that final approval on a project by project basis be granted by Schools Forum on receipt of a 
detailed business case for each project. 

Key Points Summary 

• Two elements of funding, both one-off, arising from an underspend of DSG in 2008/09 and 
rates rebates relating to the period 2000-2009 are available for consideration by the Schools 
Forum: 

• The DSG underspend available for consideration is: £1,280,408. This comprises of  

AGENDA ITEM 8

39



o Underspend of £904,690 on central expenditure: mainly from Banded funding, 
early years and Joint Agency Management of out county placements (detail in 
paragraph 11). 

o Underspend of £252,513 on the Individual Schools Budget (excluding the rates 
rebates of £185,668 for of 2008/09, which is shown separately below for separate 
consideration in accordance with the legal opinion received)  

o Recovery of the £123,205 music service overspend  

• The rates rebates totalling £1,054,205 including £868,537 for the period 2000-2008 and 
 £185,668 for the period 2008-2009. 

• It is proposed that the rates rebate 2000-2008 be delegated out to schools as recommended 
 through legal advice and this be distributed according to a formula to be developed by the 
 Schools Forum Budget Working Party. This formula to ensure fair distribution over a set 
 period of time to ensure that the additional funding is not immediately clawed back from 
 schools though the balance claw-back scheme. 

• It is proposed that the rates rebate 2008-2009 be distributed to schools for this financial year. 

• It is proposed that the DSG underspend be considered to provide for a range of initiatives to 
 bring about improvements for schools and the children and young people of the county. 

• Such initiatives will be considered through detailed business cases prior to final approval by 
 Schools Forum at the next meeting. 

Alternative Options 

1 No alternative options or projects have been identified at this stage. Schools Forum can 
propose initiatives to be developed and considered alongside those identified in this report. 

Reasons for Recommendations 

2 The recommendations seek to ensure considered decisions for the use of the Dedicated 
Schools Grant underspend from 2008/2009 and the school rates rebates as detailed.  

Introduction and Background 

3 The report provides a full breakdown of the DSG carry-forward balances and the rates 
rebates.  It also updates Schools Forum on the final amount of DSG for 2009/10 and provides 
some background information on the increase in school budgets compared with inflation.  The 
increasing trends in the cost of the Minimum Funding Guarantee are identified. 

4 The report is in three parts as follows; 

A The Budget 2009/10 

B The DSG Outturn for 2008/09 

C The rates rebates for the period 2000-2009   

40



 

Key Considerations 

 A. The Budget 2009/10 

5 Three year budgets have been completed and issued to schools.  The Section 52 Education 
Budget Statement has been completed for financial year 2009/2010 and submitted to the 
Department for Children, Schools and Families (DCSF). Full details of all the Section 52 tables 
will be published on the Council’s website. Table 1 setting out an overview of school and 
central expenditure is attached as Appendix 1 for School Forum’s information.   

6 Dedicated Schools Grant has been confirmed at £84,519,000 which is based on 22,752 pupils 
(including early years) funded at £3,830 per pupil. £2,630,000 has been recouped by DCSF 
for onward payment to the Hereford Academy. The final DSG received was £33,000 greater 
than the budget planning total used to prepare and issue school budgets in March. 

7 Overall DSG is a tighter settlement than in previous years. The increase per pupil is 3.9% 
  however the cash increase is 2.4% compared with the Consumer Prices Index 
published in   April 2009 at 2.9%. 

8 After adjusting for the delegation of banded funding (equivalent to 1% in school budgets)  

a. 68 schools have received an adjusted budget increase greater than 2.9% per pupil 
   
b. 27 schools have received an increase of less than 2.9% per pupil 

 
c. 20% (19 out of the 95) of primary and secondary schools are on the Minimum Funding 

Guarantee (MFG) compared with 15.8% last year and 21% the previous year. 
 
9 The overall percentage increase in the Individual Schools Budget (after adjusting for the part 

year effect of  the Academy) is 3.8%, only marginally less than the 3.9% DSG per pupil 
settlement - reflecting the work of the budget working group last year in making savings 
through the school rates rebates and broadband costs.   However this percentage increase 
includes a transfer of £881,000 for the delegation of Banded Funding to school budgets from 
central budgets. This is not new money and adjusting for this funding transfer reduces the 
real increase to 2.6% - i.e. less than inflation (as measured by the Consumer Price Index in 
April). These headline percentages show that in broad terms most school budgets are at 
least keeping pace with inflation in 2009/10. The indicative DSG for 2010/11 is more 
generous and is based on a 4.5% pupil increase equivalent to a cash increase of 3.7%. 

10 It is also interesting to note that the cost of the Minimum Funding Guarantee has increased in 
the last two years equivalent to a cost of £10 per pupil and is projected to rise further in future 
years. The cost and breakdown by school sector is shown in the table below.   

 

 

 

 

 

41



Financial 
Year 

Primary 
(£’000) 

High 
(£’000) 

Special 
(£’000) 

Total 
(£’000) 

Number of 
pupils 
(excl 

nursery & 
VI forms) 

Cost 
per 

pupil 
(£) 

2006/07 114  0 0 114 22,681 5.01 

2007/08 122 4 0 125 22,268 5.62 

2008/09 44 62 122 226 21,928 10.31 

2009/10 104 0 113 216 21,605 10.01 

Indicative 

2011/12 

222 111 93 426 21,240 20.06 

 

B. DSG Outturn 2008/09 

11 As required by grant regulations a total DSG underspend of £1,342,871 has been carried 
forward from 2008/09 comprising £904,690 on central expenditure and £438,181 on the 
Individual School Budget, made up as follows 

The main underspends on central services to pupils were as follows: 
 

a. Banded Funding £332k due to reduced applications from schools prior to delegation 
 from April 2009    
b. Early years £300k due to the use of £217k of general surestart grant to support the 

 budget that was not planned for when the budget was originally set 
c.  Savings on the Joint Agency Management budget and other budgets for pupils with 
 complex needs of £268k due to placement of fewer pupils in high cost out-county 
 provision 

  
The main underspends on the Individual Schools Budgets were: 

 
d. Rates rebates for 2008/09 received for voluntary aided schools of £186k 
e. Additional income in DSG due to extra pupils of £279k  

 

12 The Music Service overspent by £123,205 which has been carried forward to 2009/10 and a 
budget recovery plan is in preparation. 

 

13 Hence the total underspend available for distribution comprises the DSG carry 
forward of £1,342,871 less the rates rebates for 2008/09 of £185,668 (which are dealt 
with separately in part C below), and adding the recovery of the music service deficit 
of £123,205 gives a total of £1,2080,408. 

14 It is proposed that the underspend (£1,280,408) should be used for investment purposes in 
the proposed projects as outlined below. These projects will be designed to ensure on-going 
improvements, developments and efficiencies.  

15 It is suggested that approximately half of the available funding should be set aside for ICT 
developments to deliver on-going benefits and the balance set against a range of smaller 
scale projects.  

42



16 A preliminary list of individual projects and indicative one-off budgets has been identified and 
is set out in the table below. Additional projects can be added to the list as necessary. Each 
project would be subject to individual approval by Schools Forum through a detailed business 
case setting out the costs and benefits. The identified projects are as follows; 

C Dedicated Schools Grant underspend Indicative 
Spend 

1. Schools Resources Development 

£268,000 of the underspend has arisen from the Joint Agency 
Management budget which supports our most vulnerable and disabled 
children and young people and the costs of out-county placement where 
necessary. These recommendations aim to develop early intervention 
projects to support such children within their current placements. These 
have been identified from an analysis of needs presented and requests 
that have been received from schools for additional support throughout 
the year. This also takes into account the £2m capital project underway 
in High Schools to establish Additional Resource Centres. 

§ Nurture Groups: EYFS: ABG has supported the implementation 
of one Nurture Group pilot at a cost of £20,000. It is proposed 
that a further 5 be established across the county and that these 
settings be identified through formula and identified need.  Total 
cost: £100,000. 

§ Additionally Resourced Provision: KS2: in line with the High 
School Alternative Provision Pilot – this will offer opportunities to 
explore approaches and resources at an earlier stage and to link 
to the APP in order to ensure effective transition. It is proposed 
that 4 projects be established across the county and that these 
settings be different from those receiving Nurture Group 
development and identified through formula and identified need. 
Total cost: 4x£25k = £100,000. 

§ In-Year Fair Access Protocol / Placements following PLASC: The 
pressure on schools finances when accepting pupils in-year as 
either part of a managed move or as a result of late placement 
can be significant where such children have additional needs. 
This proposal should allow for an amount of funding to be 
provided to the receiving school in order to ease such pressure. 
The allocation would be managed through the placement panel. 
Total cost: £20,000. 

 

       £220,000 

2. Building Schools for the Future  

Herefordshire should establish a team to prepare for Building Schools for 
the Future (BSF) programme.  BSF is not simply a programme to rebuild 
and refurbish high school provision, but expects to deliver community 
transformation across the whole age range.  Initial work is expected to 
develop a strategy for BSF and engage schools and communities.  This 
should follow on from the work of the Herefordshire Schools Task Group.  
The DCSF expects to approach Herefordshire in 2011/2012 and expects 

£200,000 - 
£500,000 

43



that much of the preparatory work will have been done by then.  The 
DCSF estimate is that for a £85 million project, the local area will have to 
spend c.£2.6m.  However, other local authorities have found that costs 
on such a programme have actual been more in the region of £3.5m. 
Funding such amounts has proved a challenge for many areas, and a 
combination of DSG, Council funding and prudential borrowing has been 
used.  The Directorate proposes to begin Herefordshire’s approach 
through the appointment of a Programme Manager, with administrative 
support and then expand this as required.  The DSG underspend 
provides an opportunity to “bank” some necessary funding for this 
development, which would provide a level of funding for Herefordshire 
that would not otherwise be available. 

 

3. High school kitchen refurbishment programme 

Continued refurbishment of high school kitchens for Weobley, Wigmore 
and Lady Hawkins. DCSF have provided a grant of £75,000 which 
requires match funding. 

 

£75,000 

4. Schools ICT investment   

 

To build on existing applications and extend them to improve the 
efficiency of schools:- 

• Improve the flow of information between schools and the local 
authority 

• improve the quality and  security of data 

• improve quality and timeliness of access to attendance data 

• reduce data entry and re-entry  

• ensure that the right people have the access to the right data at 
the right time.   

• Schools intranet developments e.g. governors 

• Other smaller projects to be identified 
 
These solutions will allow us to ensure that pupil and staff data is held 
more securely and transferred quickly and easily ensuring that decision 
making at both the local authority and school is fully informed by being 

based on accurate and up-to-date data.  It is intended that the project will 

bring efficiency improvements in both small and large schools.  
 

£250,000 - 
£550,000 

5. Governor Service Development: 

This has previously been considered by SF and is currently being 
developed as an SLA strategy for 10/11. However, there are a significant 
number of pressing issues which Governors require help, support and 
training for and requests to the service and to DLT have risen 
significantly.  This proposal outlines a business case to meet these 
demands for this year whilst options for sustainable service 
developments are designed and approved. Business case attached. 

 

£70,000 

44



6. Schools Task Group – future implementation costs 

To meet the expected continuing costs of the independent chair, 
consultation costs and a contingency for the next phase of the schools 
review.  

£75,000 

   

 D.  The rates rebates for 2000-2009 

17.  In total rates rebates of £1,054,205 have been received for charitable rates relief for voluntary 
aided schools going back to 2000. The current year rebates (£186k) relating to 2008/09 were 
carried forward as part of the DSG underspend and the remaining £868,537 for the period 2000-
2008 has been carried forward as a reserve.  

18 On the recommendation of the Department for Children, Schools and Families legal advice 
has been sought on the possible uses of the rates rebates. The advice is that the rates 
rebates relating to the period 2000-2009 should be added to the overall schools budget within 
the education budget in order that it can be available for the benefit of all the Council’s 
schools. Specifically, it is advised that “there is a one-off increase in the per pupil allocation in 
the year that the allocation is made”. 

19 In view of the legal advice it is therefore proposed to distribute all the £1,054,205 rates rebates 
money to schools on a formula basis to schools as set out in the table below. . 

 School Rates rebates for the period April 2000-March 2009 Revenue 
Spend 

1. Distribute to all schools at £8.55 per pupil (excl nursery and VI forms)       £185,668 

2.  Distribute to all schools in future years by a formula to be developed by 
the Budget Working Group  

£868,537 

Community Impact 

20 No direct impact  

Financial Implications 

21 As set out in the report. The allocation of DSG carry forward to one-off projects will have no 
impact on future year’s allocation of DSG. 

Legal Implications 

22 These proposals comply with the Council’s legal duties. Legal opinion has been sought to 
ensure that the use of the rates rebates complies with school funding regulations. 

Risk Management 

23 Business case for each capital project will be subject to a further consideration by Schools 
Forum before a final decision is taken. If the business case does not justify the capital 
investment then alternative projects will be brought forward for consideration. 

24 Legal opinion has been sought regarding the allocation of the schools rates rebates.  

45



Appendices 

Section 52 Budget Statement 2009/10 

Background Papers 

Legal Opinion from Lachlan Wilson QC, 3PB, Temple, London 

46



*
A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
 1

Y
e
a
r

L
o
c
a
l 
A
u
th
o
ri
ty
 N
a
m
e

C
o
n
ta
c
t

T
e
l 
N
o
.

N
u

rs
e

ry
P

ri
m

a
ry

S
e

c
o

n
d

a
ry

S
p

e
c
ia

l
G

ro
s
s

In
c
o

m
e

N
e

t

1
(a

)
(b

)
(c

)
(d

)
(e

)
(f

)
(g

)

1
.0

.1
0

3
8

,8
1

1
,8

1
2

3
6

,1
5

2
,0

5
6

3
,7

8
6

,2
7

8
7

8
,7

5
0

,1
4

5
7

8
,7

5
0

,1
4

5

1
.0

.2
0

2
,5

0
0

,4
8

8
1

,4
7

9
,7

6
2

1
6

5
,4

2
5

4
,1

4
5

,6
7

5
4

,1
4

5
,6

7
5

0

1
.0

.3
0

0
0

4
7

,3
9

2
4

7
,3

9
2

4
7

,3
9

2
0

1
.0

.4
2

9
3

,8
6

3
5

6
4

,4
9

0
2

0
,8

4
8

8
7

9
,2

0
1

8
7

9
,2

0
1

0

1
.0

.5
0

0
5

,3
1

6
5

,3
1

6
5

,3
1

6
0

1
.0

.6
0

3
,3

6
1

,9
6

4
1

,5
2

1
,1

9
1

3
7

6
,0

7
2

5
,2

5
9

,2
2

7
5

,2
5

9
,2

2
7

0

1
.0

.7
0

1
9

7
,8

2
7

2
,1

9
4

,3
0

2
1

5
,0

5
9

2
,4

0
7

,1
8

8
2

,4
0

7
,1

8
8

0

1
.0

.8
0

0
0

0
0

0

1
.0

.9
2

,8
8

6
,5

1
6

2
,8

8
6

,5
1

6
0

2
,8

8
6

,5
1

6

1
.1

.1
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

1
.1

.2
0

3
1

7
,7

7
1

3
1

3
,1

2
7

8
0

,5
4

7
7

1
1

,4
4

6
0

7
1

1
,4

4
6

1
.2

.1
0

2
2

6
,8

0
8

2
0

7
,1

2
7

0
4

3
3

,9
3

5
0

4
3

3
,9

3
5

1
.2

.2
0

6
5

8
,5

1
1

6
4

4
,7

9
2

6
8

,5
9

5
1

,3
7

1
,8

9
7

0
1

,3
7

1
,8

9
7

1
.2

.3
0

1
1

6
,9

3
5

1
0

8
,9

2
2

1
1

,4
0

8
2

3
7

,2
6

5
0

2
3

7
,2

6
5

1
.2

.4
0

1
,1

5
1

,6
1

9
1

,0
7

2
,6

9
9

1
1

2
,3

4
6

2
,3

3
6

,6
6

3
2

9
2

,5
7

1
2

,0
4

4
,0

9
2

1
.2

.5
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

1
.2

.6
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

1
.2

.7
0

(2
,5

5
1

)
(2

,3
7

6
)

(2
4

9
)

(5
,1

7
6

)
0

(5
,1

7
6

)

1
.2

.8
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

1
.3

.1
0

4
3

3
,3

1
3

4
0

3
,6

1
8

4
2

,2
7

2
8

7
9

,2
0

2
0

8
7

9
,2

0
2

1
.3

.2
0

2
5

,9
5

1
2

5
,4

1
0

2
,7

0
3

5
4

,0
6

4
0

5
4

,0
6

4

1
.3

.3
0

1
3

5
,1

1
5

1
3

2
,3

0
0

1
4

,0
7

5
2

8
1

,4
9

0
0

2
8

1
,4

9
0

1
.3

.4
1

4
 -

 1
6

 M
o

re
 p

ra
c
ti
c
a

l 
le

a
rn

in
g

 o
p

ti
o

n
s

4
5

,4
0

5
2

,8
9

8
4

8
,3

0
3

0
4

8
,3

0
3

1
.3

.5
4

7
6

,2
4

4
4

7
6

,2
4

4
0

4
7

6
,2

4
4

1
.4

.1
0

0
0

0
0

0

1
.4

.2
0

7
,9

7
4

7
,4

2
8

7
7

8
1

6
,1

8
0

0
1

6
,1

8
0

E
m
a
il
 A
d
d
re
s
s

ld
e

v
lin

@
h

e
re

fo
rd

s
h

ir
e

.g
o

v
.u

k

N
O
 E
R
R
O
R
S
/W
A
R
N
IN
G
S

T
A
B
L
E
 1
: 
F
U
N
D
IN
G
 P
E
R
IO
D
 2
 (
2
0
0
9
-1
0
)

C
h
il
d
re
n
, 
S
c
h
o
o
ls
 a
n
d
 F
a
m
il
ie
s
 F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
D
a
ta
 C
o
ll
e
c
ti
o
n

T
a
b
le
 1
 -
 L
o
c
a
l 
A
u
th
o
ri
ty
 I
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n

C
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
 D
a
te

1
6

/0
4

/2
0

0
9

2
0

0
9

-1
0

H
e

re
fo

rd
s
h

ir
e

L
o

u
is

e
 D

e
v
lin

0
1

4
3

2
 2

6
1

8
5

9
V
e
rs
io
n
 N
o
.

2

L
o
c
a
l 

8
8

4

S
C
H
O
O
L
S
 B
U
D
G
E
T

In
d

iv
id

u
a

l 
S

c
h

o
o

ls
 B

u
d

g
e

t

S
c
h

o
o

l 
S

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
 G

ra
n

t 
- 

M
a

in
ta

in
e

d
 S

c
h

o
o

ls

S
c
h

o
o

l 
S

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
 G

ra
n

t 
- 

P
u

p
il 

R
e

fe
rr

a
l 
U

n
it
s

S
c
h

o
o

l 
S

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
 G

ra
n

t 
(P

e
rs

o
n

a
lis

a
ti
o

n
) 

- 
M

a
in

ta
in

e
d

 S
c
h

o
o

ls
 

S
c
h

o
o

l 
S

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
 G

ra
n

t 
(P

e
rs

o
n

a
lis

a
ti
o

n
) 

- 
P

u
p

il 
R

e
fe

rr
a

l 
U

n
it
s

S
c
h

o
o

l 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

G
ra

n
t

O
th

e
r 

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 F

u
n

d
 A

llo
c
a

ti
o

n
 -

 D
e

v
o

lv
e

d

T
h

re
s
h

o
ld

 a
n

d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 P
a

y
 (

D
e

v
o

lv
e

d
)

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
 f

o
r 

E
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
C

h
ild

re
n

 u
n

d
e

r 
5

s
 i
n

 P
ri
v
a

te
/v

o
lu

n
ta

ry
/i
n

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t 
s
e

tt
in

g
s

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 f
o

r 
s
c
h

o
o

ls
 i
n

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
d

if
fi
c
u

lt
y

S
c
h

o
o

l-
s
p

e
c
if
ic

 c
o

n
ti
n

g
e

n
c
ie

s

P
ro

v
is

io
n

 f
o

r 
p

u
p

ils
 w

it
h

 S
E

N
 (

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 a

s
s
ig

n
e

d
 r

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
) 

P
ro

v
is

io
n

 f
o

r 
p

u
p

ils
 w

it
h

 S
E

N
, 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

 n
o

t 
in

c
lu

d
e

d
 i
n

 l
in

e
 1

.2
.1

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 f
o

r 
in

c
lu

s
io

n

F
e

e
s
 f

o
r 

p
u

p
ils

 a
t 

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 

s
p

e
c
ia

l 
s
c
h

o
o

ls
 &

 a
b

ro
a

d

S
E

N
 t

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

F
e

e
s
 t

o
 i
n

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t 
s
c
h

o
o

ls
 f

o
r 

p
u

p
ils

 w
it
h

o
u

t 
S

E
N

In
te

r-
a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 r
e

c
o

u
p

m
e

n
t

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 t

o
 c

o
m

b
in

e
d

 b
u

d
g

e
ts

 

P
u

p
il 

R
e

fe
rr

a
l 
U

n
it
s

B
e

h
a

v
io

u
r 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

E
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
 o

u
t 

o
f 

s
c
h

o
o

l

C
e

n
tr

a
l 
e

x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
 o

n
 e

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
c
h

ild
re

n
 u

n
d

e
r 

5
s

S
c
h

o
o

l 
M

e
a

ls
  

- 
n

u
rs

e
ry

, 
p

ri
m

a
ry

 a
n

d
 s

p
e

c
ia

l 
s
c
h

o
o

ls

F
re

e
 s

c
h

o
o

l 
m

e
a

ls
 -

  
e

lig
ib

ili
ty

47



1
.4

.3
0

4
,1

9
4

2
6

8
4

,4
6

2
0

4
,4

6
2

1
.4

.4
0

0
0

0
0

0

1
.5

.1
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

1
.5

.2
0

1
,6

9
5

1
,5

7
9

1
6

5
3

,4
4

0
0

3
,4

4
0

1
.5

.3
0

8
9

,6
2

8
8

3
,4

8
6

8
,7

4
4

1
8

1
,8

5
7

0
1

8
1

,8
5

7

1
.5

.4
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

1
.5

.5
0

8
1

2
,6

1
6

6
9

0
,6

0
3

1
2

0
,0

8
0

1
,6

2
3

,2
9

9
0

1
,6

2
3

,2
9

9

1
.5

.6
0

2
,5

6
8

2
,3

9
2

2
5

0
5

,2
1

0
0

5
,2

1
0

1
.5

.7
0

1
7

,1
9

2
1

6
,0

1
4

1
,6

7
7

3
4

,8
8

3
0

3
4

,8
8

3

1
.5

.8
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

1
.5

.9
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

1
.6

.1
0

7
6

,9
6

0
2

4
,4

4
0

2
,6

0
0

1
0

4
,0

0
0

1
0

4
,0

0
0

0

1
.6

.2
3

5
0

,5
5

9
2

2
2

,3
9

4
7

6
5

,3
7

3
5

8
,9

1
4

1
,3

9
7

,2
4

0
1

,3
9

7
,2

4
0

0

1
.6

.3
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

1
.6

.4
0

0
0

0
0

0

1
.7

.1
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

1
.7

.2
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

1
.8

.1
3

,7
1

3
,3

1
9

4
9

,4
6

4
,6

4
7

4
6

,4
5

4
,1

3
8

4
,9

4
4

,4
6

0
1

0
4

,5
7

6
,5

6
4

1
4

,5
3

7
,8

1
0

9
0

,0
3

8
,7

5
4

2
O
T
H
E
R
 E
D
U
C
A
T
IO
N
 A
N
D
 C
O
M
M
U
N
IT
Y
 B
U
D
G
E
T

2
.0

.1
E

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
P

s
y
c
h

o
lo

g
y
 S

e
rv

ic
e

4
4

2
,6

1
0

0
4

4
2

,6
1

0

2
.0

.2
S

E
N

 a
d

m
in

is
tr

a
ti
o

n
, 

a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 c
o

-o
rd

in
a

ti
o

n
3

6
5

,3
7

9
0

3
6

5
,3

7
9

2
.0

.3
T

h
e

ra
p

ie
s
 a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

h
e

a
lt
h

 r
e

la
te

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
0

0
0

2
.0

.4
P

a
re

n
t 

p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

, 
g

u
id

a
n

c
e

 a
n

d
 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
4

2
,5

4
2

0
4

2
,5

4
2

2
.0

.5
M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 o

f 
S

E
N

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

3
1

,4
7

9
0

3
1

,4
7

9

2
.0

.6
T
o
ta
l 
S
p
e
c
ia
l 
E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n

8
8

2
,0

1
0

0
8

8
2

,0
1

0

L
e
a
rn
e
r 
S
u
p
p
o
rt

2
.1

.1
E

x
c
lu

d
e

d
 p

u
p

ils
  

 
2

8
,0

4
9

0
2

8
,0

4
9

2
.1

.2
P

u
p

il 
s
u

p
p

o
rt

0
2

,3
8

6
2

,3
3

6
2

4
9

4
,9

7
0

0
4

,9
7

0

2
.1

.3
H

o
m

e
 t

o
 s

c
h

o
o

l 
tr

a
n

s
p

o
rt

: 
S

E
N

 t
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

 e
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
0

0
0

1
,5

3
4

,9
7

5
1

,5
3

4
,9

7
5

0
1

,5
3

4
,9

7
5

2
.1

.4
H

o
m

e
 t

o
 s

c
h

o
o

l 
tr

a
n

s
p

o
rt

: 
o

th
e

r 
h

o
m

e
 t

o
 s

c
h

o
o

l 
tr

a
n

s
p

o
rt

 e
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
0

1
,0

9
7

,2
8

0
2

,3
2

1
,2

3
3

1
1

,0
6

6
3

,4
2

9
,5

7
9

0
3

,4
2

9
,5

7
9

2
.1

.5
H

o
m

e
 t

o
 c

o
lle

g
e

 t
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

: 
S

E
N

 t
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

 e
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
0

0
0

2
.1

.6
H

o
m

e
 t

o
 c

o
lle

g
e

 t
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

: 
o

th
e

r 
h

o
m

e
 t

o
 c

o
lle

g
e

 t
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

 e
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
7

3
0

,7
2

6
3

6
5

,0
0

0
3

6
5

,7
2

6

2
.1

.7
E

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
 W

e
lf
a

re
 S

e
rv

ic
e

2
7

8
,0

5
1

0
2

7
8

,0
5

1

2
.1

.8
1

,4
5

9
,0

1
6

0
1

,4
5

9
,0

1
6

2
.1

.9
7

,4
6

5
,3

6
6

3
6

5
,0

0
0

7
,1

0
0

,3
6

6

M
ilk

S
c
h

o
o

l 
k
it
c
h

e
n

s
  

- 
 r

e
p

a
ir
 a

n
d

 m
a

in
te

n
a

n
c
e

In
s
u

ra
n

c
e

M
u

s
e

u
m

 a
n

d
 L

ib
ra

ry
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s

S
c
h

o
o

l 
a

d
m

is
s
io

n
s

L
ic

e
n

c
e

s
/s

u
b

s
c
ri
p

ti
o

n
s
 

M
is

c
e

lla
n

e
o

u
s
 (

n
o

t 
m

o
re

 t
h

a
n

 0
.1

%
 t

o
ta

l 
o

f 
n

e
t 

S
B

)

S
e

rv
ic

in
g

 o
f 

s
c
h

o
o

ls
 f

o
ru

m
s

S
ta

ff
 c

o
s
ts

 -
 s

u
p

p
ly

 c
o

v
e

r 
(n

o
t 

s
ic

k
n

e
s
s
)

S
u

p
p

ly
 c

o
v
e

r 
- 

lo
n

g
 t

e
rm

 s
ic

k
n

e
s
s

T
e

rm
in

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
c
o

s
ts

S
c
h

o
o

l 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

G
ra

n
t 

- 
N

o
n

-D
e

v
o

lv
e

d

O
th

e
r 

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 F

u
n

d
 A

llo
c
a

ti
o

n
 -

 N
o

n
-D

e
v
o

lv
e

d

O
th

e
r 

S
p

e
c
if
ic

 G
ra

n
ts

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 R
e

w
a

rd
 G

ra
n

t

C
a

p
it
a

l 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
 f

ro
m

 R
e

v
e

n
u

e
 (

C
E

R
A

) 
(S

c
h

o
o

ls
)

P
ru

d
e

n
ti
a

l 
b

o
rr

o
w

in
g

 c
o

s
ts

T
O
T
A
L
 S
C
H
O
O
L
S
 B
U
D
G
E
T

S
P
E
C
IA
L
 E
D
U
C
A
T
IO
N
 

S
c
h

o
o

l 
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t

T
o
ta
l 
L
e
a
rn
e
r 
S
u
p
p
o
rt

48



A
C
C
E
S
S

2
.2

.1
A

s
s
e

t 
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
- 

e
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
1

,1
2

5
,8

9
2

0
1

,1
2

5
,8

9
2

2
.2

.2
S

u
p

p
ly

 o
f 

s
c
h

o
o

l 
p

la
c
e

s
4

4
,6

2
0

0
4

4
,6

2
0

2
.2

.3
M

u
s
ic

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 (

n
o

t 
S

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
 F

u
n

d
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
e

d
)

0
0

0

2
.2

.4
V

is
u

a
l 
a

n
d

 p
e

rf
o

rm
in

g
 a

rt
s
 (

o
th

e
r 

th
a

n
 m

u
s
ic

)
2

5
,3

8
0

0
2

5
,3

8
0

2
.3

.1
O

u
td

o
o

r 
E

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 E

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

ta
l 
a

n
d

 F
ie

ld
 S

tu
d

ie
s
 (

n
o

t 
s
p

o
rt

s
)

2
7

,6
1

4
0

2
7

,6
1

4

2
.3

.2
T
o
ta
l 
A
c
c
e
s
s

1
,2

2
3

,5
0

5
0

1
,2

2
3

,5
0

5

3

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
o
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le

3
.0

.1
5

0
,0

3
1

0
5

0
,0

3
1

3
.0

.2
P

o
s
it
iv

e
 A

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 c

o
n

tr
o

lle
d

 o
r 

s
h

a
p

e
d

 b
y
 y

o
u

n
g

 p
e

o
p

le
3

7
,5

4
5

0
3

7
,5

4
5

3
.0

.3
P

o
s
it
iv

e
 A

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 o
n

 F
ri
d

a
y
 a

n
d

 S
a

tu
rd

a
y
 n

ig
h

ts
0

0
0

3
.0

.4
Y

o
u

th
 W

o
rk

1
,1

3
8

,3
7

2
0

1
,1

3
8

,3
7

2

3
.1

.1
0

0
0

3
.1

.2
1

,4
7

0
,0

0
0

0
1

,4
7

0
,0

0
0

3
.1

.3
0

0
0

3
.1

.4
1

5
2

,7
2

0
0

1
5

2
,7

2
0

3
.1

.5
0

0
0

3
.1

.6
2

,8
4

8
,6

6
8

0
2

,8
4

8
,6

6
8

4
Y
O
U
T
H
 J
U
S
T
IC
E

4
.0

.1
S

e
c
u

re
 a

c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o

n
 (

y
o

u
th

 j
u

s
ti
c
e

)
0

0
0

4
.0

.2
Y

o
u

th
 O

ff
e

n
d

e
r 

T
e

a
m

s
3

4
5

,4
7

4
0

3
4

5
,4

7
4

4
.0

.3
O

th
e

r 
Y

o
u

th
 J

u
s
ti
c
e

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

0
0

0

4
.0

.4
T
o
ta
l 
Y
o
u
th
 J
u
s
ti
c
e

3
4

5
,4

7
4

0
3

4
5

,4
7

4

5

C
h
il
d
re
n
 L
o
o
k
e
d
 A
ft
e
r

5
.0

.1
R

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
c
a

re
2

,0
9

7
,9

9
8

0
2

,0
9

7
,9

9
8

5
.0

.2
F

o
s
te

ri
n

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

2
,3

6
0

,3
0

9
0

2
,3

6
0

,3
0

9

5
.0

.3
O

th
e

r 
c
h

ild
re

n
 l
o

o
k
e

d
 a

ft
e

r 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s

1
8

7
,0

0
9

0
1

8
7

,0
0

9

5
.0

.4
S

e
c
u

re
 a

c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o

n
 (

w
e

lf
a

re
)

1
4

,1
7

0
0

1
4

,1
7

0

5
.0

.5
S

h
o

rt
 b

re
a

k
s
 (

re
s
p

it
e

) 
fo

r 
lo

o
k
e

d
 a

ft
e

r 
d

is
a

b
le

d
 c

h
ild

re
n

3
4

,8
3

9
0

3
4

,8
3

9

5
.0

.6
C

h
ild

re
n

 p
la

c
e

d
 w

it
h

 f
a

m
ily

 a
n

d
 f

ri
e

n
d

s
1

6
0

,0
7

2
0

1
6

0
,0

7
2

5
.0

.7
A

d
v
o

c
a

c
y
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 f

o
r 

c
h

ild
re

n
 l
o

o
k
e

d
 a

ft
e

r
3

8
,0

6
0

0
3

8
,0

6
0

5
.0

.8
E

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
lo

o
k
e

d
 a

ft
e

r 
c
h

ild
re

n
 

0
6

6
,8

1
8

6
5

,4
2

6
6

,9
6

0
1

3
9

,2
0

5
0

1
3

9
,2

0
5

5
.0

.9
L

e
a

v
in

g
 c

a
re

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s

2
1

5
,1

5
0

0
2

1
5

,1
5

0

 5
.0
.1
0
T
o
ta
l 
C
h
il
d
re
n
 L
o
o
k
e
d
 A
ft
e
r

5
,2

4
6

,8
1

2
0

5
,2

4
6

,8
1

2

C
h
il
d
re
n
 a
n
d
 Y
o
u
n
g
 P
e
o
p
le
's
 S
a
fe
ty

5
.1

.1
C

h
ild

 d
e

a
th

 r
e

v
ie

w
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
e

s
1

6
,1

3
0

0
1

6
,1

3
0

5
.1

.2
P

re
v
e

n
ta

ti
v
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 (

fo
rm

e
rl
y
 t

h
e

 c
h

ild
re

n
's

 f
u

n
d

)
3

5
7

,1
7

0
0

3
5

7
,1

7
0

Y
O
U
T
H
 A
N
D
 C
O
M
M
U
N
IT
Y

P
o

s
it
iv

e
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 

A
d

u
lt
 a

n
d

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 l
e

a
rn

in
g

C
o

n
n

e
x
io

n
s

D
is

c
re

ti
o

n
a

ry
 A

w
a

rd
s

S
tu

d
e

n
t 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 u
n

d
e

r 
n

e
w

 A
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 a
n

d
 M

a
n

d
a

to
ry

 A
w

a
rd

s

C
a

p
it
a

l 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
 f

ro
m

 R
e

v
e

n
u

e
 (

C
E

R
A

) 
(Y

o
u

th
 &

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
)

T
o
ta
l 
Y
o
u
th
 a
n
d
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y

C
H
IL
D
R
E
N
'S
 A
N
D
 Y
O
U
N
G
 P
E
O
P
L
E
'S
 S
E
R
V
IC
E
S

49



5
.1

.3
L

A
 f

u
n

c
ti
o

n
s
 i
n

 r
e

la
ti
o

n
 t

o
 c

h
ild

 p
ro

te
c
ti
o

n
0

0
0

5
.1

.4
L

o
c
a

l 
s
a

fe
g

u
a

rd
in

g
 c

h
ild

re
n

s
 b

o
a

rd
8

8
,4

4
8

0
8

8
,4

4
8

5
.1
.5
T
o
ta
l 
C
h
il
d
re
n
 a
n
d
 Y
o
u
n
g
 P
e
o
p
le
's
 S
a
fe
ty

4
6

1
,7

4
8

0
4

6
1

,7
4

8

F
a
m
il
y
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s

5
.2

.1
D

ir
e

c
t 

p
a

y
m

e
n

ts
6

0
,2

8
0

0
6

0
,2

8
0

5
.2

.2
S

h
o

rt
 b

re
a

k
s
 (

re
s
p

it
e

) 
fo

r 
d

is
a

b
le

d
 c

h
ild

re
n

1
6

9
,0

0
0

0
1

6
9

,0
0

0

5
.2

.3
H

o
m

e
 c

a
re

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s

0
0

0

5
.2

.4
E

q
u

ip
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 a
d

a
p

ta
ti
o

n
s

0
0

0

5
.2

.5
O

th
e

r 
fa

m
ily

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s

8
0

3
,3

7
1

0
8

0
3

,3
7

1

5
.2

.6
S

u
b

s
ta

n
c
e

 m
is

u
s
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 (

D
ru

g
s
, 

A
lc

o
h

o
l 
a

n
d

 V
o

la
ti
le

 s
u

b
s
ta

n
c
e

s
)

5
8

,0
0

0
0

5
8

,0
0

0

5
.2

.7
C

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti
o

n
 t

o
 h

e
a

lt
h

 c
a

re
 o

f 
in

d
iv

id
u

a
l 
c
h

ild
re

n
2

0
8

,0
0

0
0

2
0

8
,0

0
0

5
.2

.8
T

e
e

n
a

g
e

 p
re

g
n

a
n

c
y
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
9

9
,0

0
0

0
9

9
,0

0
0

5
.2

.9
T
o
ta
l 
F
a
m
il
y
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s

1
,3

9
7

,6
5

1
0

1
,3

9
7

,6
5

1

A
s
y
lu
m
 s
e
e
k
e
rs

5
.3

.1
A

s
y
lu

m
 s

e
e

k
e

r 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 -

 c
h

ild
re

n
0

0
0

5
.3

.2
U

n
a

c
c
o

m
p

a
n

ie
d

 a
s
y
lu

m
 c

h
ild

re
n

0
0

0

5
.3

.3
A

c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o

n
0

0
0

5
.3

.4
A

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 c
a

re
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
0

0
0

5
.3
.5
T
o
ta
l 
A
s
y
lu
m
 S
e
e
k
e
rs

0
0

0

O
th
e
r 
C
h
il
d
re
n
's
 a
n
d
 F
a
m
il
ie
s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s

5
.4

.1
A

d
o

p
ti
o

n
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
3

2
6

,2
7

6
0

3
2

6
,2

7
6

5
.4

.2
S

p
e

c
ia

l 
g

u
a

rd
ia

n
s
h

ip
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 

7
3

,5
9

6
0

7
3

,5
9

6

  
  

  
5

.4
.3

O
th

e
r 

c
h

ild
re

n
's

 a
n

d
 f

a
m

ili
e

s
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
3

1
4

,2
5

2
0

3
1

4
,2

5
2

5
.4

.4
T
o
ta
l 
O
th
e
r 
C
h
il
d
re
n
's
 a
n
d
 F
a
m
il
ie
s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
  
 

7
1

4
,1

2
4

0
7

1
4

,1
2

4

C
h
il
d
re
n
's
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 S
tr
a
te
g
y

5
.5

.1
C

h
ild

re
n

's
 a

n
d

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

's
 p

la
n

2
4

4
,9

9
1

0
2

4
4

,9
9

1

5
.5

.2
C

h
ild

re
n

's
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c
a

re
 w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 g

ra
n

t 
0

0
0

5
.5

.3
P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 c

o
s
ts

 
2

,0
9

6
0

2
,0

9
6

5
.5

.4
C

e
n

tr
a

l 
c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 f

u
n

c
ti
o

n
0

0
0

5
.5

.5
C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 a

n
d

 s
o

c
ia

l 
w

o
rk

5
,3

2
6

,2
1

7
0

5
,3

2
6

,2
1

7

5
.5
.6
T
o
ta
l 
C
h
il
d
re
n
's
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 S
tr
a
te
g
y

5
,5

7
3

,3
0

4
0

5
,5

7
3

,3
0

4

5
.6

.1
C
a
p
it
a
l 
E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re
 f
ro
m
 R
e
v
e
n
u
e
 (
C
E
R
A
) 
(C
h
il
d
re
n
's
 a
n
d
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
's
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
)

0
0

0

6
L
o
c
a
l 
A
u
th
o
ri
ty
 E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 F
u
n
c
ti
o
n
s

6
.0

.1
S

ta
tu

to
ry

 /
 R

e
g

u
la

to
ry

 D
u

ti
e

s
 

1
,5

3
1

,2
6

0
0

1
,5

3
1

,2
6

0

6
.0

.2
P

re
m

a
tu

re
 r

e
ti
re

m
e

n
t 

c
o

s
ts

 /
 R

e
d

u
n

d
a

n
c
y
 c

o
s
ts

 
6

4
9

,2
5

9
0

6
4

9
,2

5
9

6
.0

.3
1

0
6

,0
0

0
0

1
0

6
,0

0
0

E
x
is

ti
n

g
 E

a
rl
y
 R

e
ti
re

m
e

n
t 

C
o

s
ts

 (
c
o

m
m

it
m

e
n

ts
 e

n
te

re
d

 i
n

to
 b

y
 3

1
/3

/9
9

)

50



6
.0

.4
0

0
0

6
.0

.5
J
o

in
t 

u
s
e

 a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

0
0

0

6
.0

.6
In

s
u

ra
n

c
e

0
0

0

6
.0

.7
M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 n

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
c
u

rr
ic

u
lu

m
 a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t
1

1
,8

2
0

0
1

1
,8

2
0

6
.0
.8
T
o
ta
l 
L
o
c
a
l 
A
u
th
o
ri
ty
 E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 F
u
n
c
ti
o
n
s

2
,2

9
8

,3
3

9
0

2
,2

9
8

,3
3

9

S
p
e
c
if
ic
 G
ra
n
ts
 a
n
d
 S
p
e
c
if
ic
 F
o
rm
u
la
 G
ra
n
ts

6
.1

.1
S

c
h

o
o

l 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

G
ra

n
t 

- 
n

o
n

-d
e

v
o

lv
e

d
 

0
0

0

6
.1

.2
O

th
e

r 
S

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
 F

u
n

d
 A

llo
c
a

ti
o

n
 -

 n
o

n
-d

e
v
o

lv
e

d
 

4
5

9
,8

0
4

4
5

9
,8

0
4

0

6
.1

.3
O

th
e

r 
S

p
e

c
if
ic

 G
ra

n
t

 
0

0
0

6
.1
.4
T
o
ta
l 
S
p
e
c
if
ic
 G
ra
n
ts

4
5

9
,8

0
4

4
5

9
,8

0
4

0

6
.2
.1
C
a
p
it
a
l 
E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re
 f
ro
m
 R
e
v
e
n
u
e
 (
C
E
R
A
) 
(L
A
 E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 F
u
n
c
ti
o
n
s
)

0
0

0

7
.1
.1

1
1

6
,9

9
6

,1
1

3
1

4
,9

0
2

,8
1

0
1

0
2

,0
9

3
,3

0
3

7
.1
.2

1
3

,7
3

9
,1

1
3

0
1

3
,7

3
9

,1
1

3

7
.1
.3
T
o
ta
l 
L
A
 E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 F
u
n
c
ti
o
n
s
 B
u
d
g
e
t 
(I
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 C
E
R
A
) 
p
lu
s
 (
L
in
e
s
 6
.0
.8
 +
 6
.1
.4
 +
 6
.2
.1
)

2
,7

5
8

,1
4

3
4

5
9

,8
0

4
2

,2
9

8
,3

3
9

8
1

3
3

,4
9

3
,3

6
9

1
5

,3
6

2
,6

1
4

1
1

8
,1

3
0

,7
5

5

9
C
a
p
it
a
l 
E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re
 (
e
x
c
lu
d
in
g
 C
E
R
A
)

2
,3

1
4

,4
2

6
7

,8
1

1
,5

2
5

2
3

,3
4

9
,0

5
1

5
2

1
,3

5
0

3
3

,9
9

6
,3

5
2

3
1

,2
4

5
,8

8
9

2
,7

5
0

,4
6

3

1
0

1
0

a
.1

2
,1

9
3

,3
9

9
2

,1
9

3
,3

9
9

2
,1

9
3

,3
9

9
0

1
0

a
.2

0
0

0
0

1
0

b
.1

0
0

0
0

0

1
0

b
.2

0
0

0
0

0

1
0

b
.3

3
7

3
,2

3
7

0
3

7
3

,2
3

7
3

7
3

,2
3

7
0

1
0

b
.4

0
0

0
0

0

1
0

c
.1

1
2

0
,5

1
8

0
1

2
0

,5
1

8
1

2
0

,5
1

8
0

1
0

c
.2

L
S

C
 T

h
re

s
h

o
ld

 a
n

d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 P
a

y
 C

o
s
ts

 (
in

c
lu

d
e

d
 i
n

 e
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
 a

t 
1

.0
.8

 c
o

lu
m

n
s
 c

 a
n

d
 d

)
0

0
0

0
0

R
e

s
id

u
a

l 
p

e
n

s
io

n
 l
ia

b
ili

ty
 (

e
.g

. 
F

E
, 

C
a

re
e

rs
 S

e
rv

ic
e

, 
e

tc
.)

T
o
ta
l 
S
c
h
o
o
ls
 B
u
d
g
e
t,
 S
p
e
c
ia
l 
E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 
L
e
a
rn
e
r 
S
u
p
p
o
rt
, 
A
c
c
e
s
s
 a
n
d
 Y
o
u
th
 a
n
d
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 B
u
d
g
e
t 
(I
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 C
E
R
A
) 

(L
in
e
s
 1
.8
.1
 +
 2
.0
.6
 +
 2
.1
.9
 +
 2
.3
.2
 +
 3
.1
.6
)

T
o
ta
l 
Y
o
u
th
 J
u
s
ti
c
e
, 
C
h
il
d
re
n
 a
n
d
 Y
o
u
n
g
 P
e
o
p
le
's
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 B
u
d
g
e
t 
(i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 C
E
R
A
) 
(l
in
e
s
 4
.0
.4
 +
 5
.0
.1
0
 +
 5
.1
.5
 +
 5
.2
.9
 +
 

5
.3
.5
 +
 5
.4
.4
 +
 5
.5
.6
 +
 5
.6
.1
)

T
o
ta
l 
E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
, 
Y
o
u
th
 J
u
s
ti
c
e
, 
C
h
il
d
re
n
 a
n
d
 Y
o
u
n
g
 P
e
o
p
le
's
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 L
o
c
a
l 
A
u
th
o
ri
ty
 E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 

F
u
n
c
ti
o
n
s
 B
u
d
g
e
t 
(l
in
e
s
 7
.1
.1
 +
 7
.1
.2
 +
 7
.1
.3
)

M
E
M
O
R
A
N
D
U
M
 I
T
E
M
S
 

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re
 c
o
v
e
re
d
 b
y
 L
S
C
 G
ra
n
t 
- 
In
c
lu
d
e
 b
e
lo
w
 t
h
e
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re
 r
e
c
o
rd
e
d
 i
n
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
li
n
e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 S
c
h
o
o
ls
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
th
a
t 
is
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 L
e
a
rn
in
g
 a
n
d
 S
k
il
ls
 C
o
u
n
c
il
.

S
IX

T
H

 F
O

R
M

 -
 A

llo
c
a

ti
o

n
 f

ro
m

 L
S

C
 f

o
r 

1
6

+
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 f

o
r 

s
e

c
o

n
d

a
ry

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
 (

in
c
lu

d
e

d
 i
n

 e
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
 1

.0
.1

 c
o

lu
m

n
 (

c
))

S
IX

T
H

 F
O

R
M

 -
 A

llo
c
a

ti
o

n
 f

ro
m

 L
S

C
 f

o
r 

1
6

+
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 f

o
r 

s
p

e
c
ia

l 
s
c
h

o
o

ls
 (

in
c
lu

d
e

d
 i
n

 e
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
 1

.0
.1

 c
o

lu
m

n
 (

d
))

S
ix

th
 f

o
rm

 e
le

m
e

n
t 

in
c
lu

d
e

d
 a

t 
1

.2
.1

 a
b

o
v
e

 f
o

r 
p

u
p

ils
 w

it
h

 a
n

d
 w

it
h

o
u

t 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts

S
ix

th
 f

o
rm

 e
le

m
e

n
t 

in
c
lu

d
e

d
 a

t 
1

.2
.2

 a
b

o
v
e

 f
o

r 
p

u
p

ils
 w

it
h

 S
E

N
, 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

 n
o

t 
in

c
lu

d
e

d
 i
n

 l
in

e
 

1
.2

.1
S

ix
th

 f
o

rm
 e

le
m

e
n

t 
in

c
lu

d
e

d
 a

t 
1

.2
.4

 a
b

o
v
e

 f
o

r 
p

u
p

ils
 a

t 
in

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t 
s
p

e
c
ia

l 
s
c
h

o
o

ls
 a

n
d

 a
b

ro
a

d

S
ix

th
 f

o
rm

 e
le

m
e

n
t 

in
c
lu

d
e

d
 a

t 
1

.2
.6

 a
b

o
v
e

 f
o

r 
p

u
p

ils
 a

t 
in

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t 
s
c
h

o
o

ls
 (

p
u

p
ils

 w
it
h

o
u

t 
S

E
N

)

L
S

C
 T

h
re

s
h

o
ld

 a
n

d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 P
a

y
 C

o
s
ts

 (
in

c
lu

d
e

d
 i
n

 e
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
 a

t 
1

.0
.1

 c
o

lu
m

n
s
 c

 a
n

d
 d

)

T
A
B
L
E
 1
 N
O
T
E
S

N
o
te
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 y
o
u
 p
ro
v
id
e
 i
n
 t
h
is
 s
e
c
ti
o
n
 w
il
l 
b
e
 t
a
k
e
n
 i
n
to
 a
c
c
o
u
n
t 
w
h
e
n
 r
e
tu
rn
e
d
 t
o
 D
C
S
F
.

51



M
is

c
e

lla
n

e
o

u
s
 c

o
n

ta
in

s
 a

n
 a

m
o

u
n

t 
re

la
ti
n

g
 t

o
 r

a
te

s
 r

e
b

a
te

s
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
v
e

 y
e

t 
to

 b
e

 d
e

le
g

a
te

d
 -

 S
c
h

o
o

ls
 F

o
ru

m
 w

ill
 n

o
t 

c
o

n
s
id

e
r 

u
s
e

 o
f 

c
a

rr
y
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 

52



 

 
Further information on the subject of this report is available from 

Paul Murray, Secondary School Improvement Manager on (01432) 260823 
  

290909forumreportGovernorsfinal20.doc 26Nov08 

MEETING: SCHOOLS FORUM 

DATE: 29TH SEPTEMBER 2009 

TITLE OF REPORT: DEVELOPING CAPACITY IN HEREFORDSHIRE 
GOVERNOR SERVICES 

CHILDREN AND  

YOUNG PEOPLE’S  

DIRECTORATE 

PAUL MURRAY 

CLASSIFICATION: Open 

Wards Affected 

County-wide – All Schools 

Purpose 

To request one-off funding allocation for the development of Governor support and training resources   
to meet the demands of this academic year. 

Key Decision  

This is not a Key Decision.  

Recommendation(s) 

 THAT School Forum is asked to: 

Approve the funding request of £70,000 from DSG underspend 08/09 to facilitate the 
improvement of governor services as outlined in the report. 

Key Points Summary 

To enable Herefordshire Children’s Services to further support and develop governor services and 
effectiveness in line with national guidance key principles which are as follows: 
 

a) Assuring Governing Bodies operate in accordance with statutory requirements  
  
b) Assisting the Development of Governing Body Effectiveness and Capacity 

 
c) Managing and Promoting Governor Recruitment, Retention and Recognition 

 
d) Managing and Promoting Governor Training 

 

AGENDA ITEM 9

53



 2 

e) Promoting efficient and effective administrative support to Governing Bodies 
 

f) Promoting Governor Networks 
 

g) Fulfilling Key Functions within local authority frameworks 
 

h) Supporting the Schools Task Group consultation and recommendations re 
governance 
 

Alternative Options 

1. This is a one off request to be set against DSG underspend in order to establish a fully 
supportive Governor Services for the next  calendar year. 
 

2. Such improvements will then be sustained via an agreed funding mechanism: 
Option a)  SLA agreement which is currently under design. 

Option b) The Miscellaneous budget provisions within the DSG whereby 0.1% of the schools 
budget (approx £90,000) can be spent on any services 

Reasons for Recommendations 

3. Governor Services need to:- 

• Support the delivery of the HSTG consultation and agreed outcomes in terms of Governor 
responsibilities; 

• Support the strategy and response to DCSF paper  “YOUR CHILD, YOUR SCHOOLS, 
OUR FUTURE: BUILDING A 21ST CENTURY SCHOOLS SYSTEM” in the further quality 
assurance and delivery of effective governance for all schools and the role of governors in 
establishing sustainable models of school delivery; 

• be aware of the specific requirements of the different situations in which governors 
function, depending upon the established status of the school e.g. academies, trusts, 
federations, foundation and voluntary-aided schools; 

• be aware of the special circumstances of schools causing concern or in a negative Ofsted 
category and the potential intervention of such measures as the appointment of additional 
governors or the imposition of an interim executive board, with their extended powers, 
need to be managed effectively to support school improvement; 

• help governing bodies to meet statutory requirements which depends upon the 
      provision of an effective flow of information; 

 

• be knowledgeable about the extensive and growing written material about school 
governance published by the DCSF and other relevant national agencies. 

 

Introduction and Background 

4.  Children and Young People’s agenda is central to offering good governor training 
      and support which is crucial to ensuring governing bodies effectiveness in fulfilling 
      the vital functions demanded of them especially with regard to new developments  
      as portrayed in recent government legislation, regulations and strategy documents.   
 

5. Access to up-to-date and precise information will enable them to: 

54



 3 

 

•  Understand their responsibilities and develop ways of carrying them out and 
       promote the necessary associated skills; 
 

• Governor Services will lead on and support the local authority in developing school 
governing bodies to promote high standards in all schools.  Without this the local authority 
will not be effective in addressing school improvement issues, governance and the welfare 
of pupils; 

 

• Such governance will prepare all schools for the HSTG activity and for developing 
sustainable schools for the future. 

 
6. The nature of governor development is now considered within children’s services 

developments.  The role of governing bodies as a partner within the provision of integrated 
multi-agency service delivery to children and young people is key to the successful 
implementation of the Children Act 2004.  Governor Services need to develop and enhance 
partnerships within and outside of the local authority. 

7. Individual governing bodies should be encouraged to work in partnership and work in clusters.  
Developing a strategic approach to sharing of good practice is another facet of effective 
networking. As local authority services reconfigure towards more localised delivery, this will 
grow in significance and the success of an authority to promote networks will be important. In 
considering networks the linkages need to be customised to meet the specific needs of 
different schools and the communities they serve. 

8 An understanding of partnership working and of multi-agency service delivery to children and 
young people is necessary in managing governor services work within the local authority as 
well as in supporting governing bodies with their functions. The children’s services partners 
are wide and varied in nature, and in the role of governing bodies and of governor services 
form a key part in attempts to promote multi-disciplinary team working. 

 
9. The increasing role of ICT in people’s lives has to be taken into account when planning 

methods of communication.  Two-way communication through e-governors’ forums will be 
beneficial.  BUT it must be remembered that ICT is not an effective means of communication 
with all governors.  Governors and Governing Bodies need: 

 

• an up to date understanding of what constitutes effective governance, including Ofsted 
expectations; 

• to develop the knowledge and skills to support, challenge and intervene via the 
provision of training, mentoring, coaching and consultancy; 

 

• to be made clear about the demands of the role before they take it on, including 
expectation of training.  Their membership within a governing body needs to be 
supported with relevant provisions being available to them.  A strong partnership with 
diocesan authorities with regard to the appointment of foundation governors is 
important. 

10 The appointment of Local Authority governors should be managed efficiently.  Clear              
operational guidance to elected members to ensure clear and efficient appointment 
procedures and practice, meeting the requirements of the relevant legislation, is necessary.  
(See Appendix 1 for Summary of Duties and Responsibilities).Reference:  The National 
Standards for Governance Professionals and Services – 2008 

55



 4 

 

Key Considerations 

11 The following have been identified as key areas for the development of Governor Services 
within the overall development of Herefordshire Children’s Services and the move to 
collocated provision: 

 
a)      Improved Standards Achieved in Ofsted Inspections 

 
Ofsted inspections of maintained schools are required to form a judgement on and 
grade the quality of governance.  Currently the overall grades for support required for 
governance in 102 Herefordshire schools (primary, secondary and specials and 
PRU’s) are as follows: 
                           

No  % 
i) Outstanding =    12  11.7 
ii) Good            =    49  48.0 
iii) Satisfactory  =    38  37.2 
iv) Inadequate   =      3    2.9 
 
Without significantly improved support, it is possible that under the new and more 
rigorous inspection framework introduced in September 2009, fewer schools will 
receive good or satisfactory judgements. 
 

b) Finance:  Governor Services currently has a total budget of £33,641 (INSET).  This 
funds one fte Administrative Officer post.  

c) Administrative Support:  A significant amount (60%) of the Administrative Officer’s 
time is taken up with low-level administrative tasks at the expense of tasks requiring a 
higher level of experience and expertise 

d) Line Management:  The line management of Governor Services could be improved by 
integrating the service with all other aspects of professional development, e.g. CPD 
programme, TA/HLTA development, NQT induction and UPS progression, under a 
Professional Development Co-ordinator to establish and demonstrate a consistent, 
coherent approach. 

e) Governor Training:  There is a growing demand from Governing Bodies, schools, and 
settings for an increased training programme which not only offers a wider range of 
courses and briefings but also offers them in a range of locations to improve access 
and at different times of the day to suit particular needs.  Currently almost all courses 
are run in evenings at Blackfriars.  The move to collocated services in line with the “No 
Wrong Door” strategy should be reflected in the delivery across the county of the 
training programme.  In many cases this will mean a course being delivered three times 
rather than once with a consequent impact on training costs. 

 
f)         Key items for the future training programme are: 
 

a.         HSTG Consultation 
b. 21st Century Schools Paper 
c. Safeguarding in schools and settings 
d. Admissions procedures 
e.       The 14-19 strategy and Machinery of Government objectives 
f.        Financial Management in Schools 

56



 5 

g.       Governing Body self-evaluation 
h.       GovernorMark accreditation 
i.       Performance Management 
j.       School organisation (e.g. federation, amalgamation, all-through schooling etc.) 
k.       Every Child Matters 
l.       Children’s Trust Development 

 
Delivery of an expanded training programme will require the identification and 
engagement of proficient trainers underpinned by appropriate administrative back-up. 
 

g)     Clerks:  The Government White Paper highlights the need for improved clerking of 
governing bodies and formal training of all clerks.  It also recommends that a clerk 
cannot be a member of the school staff.  Currently about 75% are school employees.  
This recommendation, if carried, would have serious implications for the recruitment, 
appointment and salary levels of new clerks. 

 
h)      Training and Guidance in New Media:  There is a need to develop the guidance and 

training the service offers in new media and technologies, e.g. maintaining the 
Governors website, producing CD’s and DVD’s and exploring the effectiveness of 
conference calls and distance learning opportunities.  This development will require a 
significant investment in training and technology and personnel to maintain systems. 

 

Community Impact 

12 There are currently 1,394 governors in Herefordshire.  Nationally school governors make up 
the largest voluntary organisation in the country.  The government places great importance on 
the role of Governing Bodies in improving schools and has a clear expectation that local 
authorities will provide support, networking and training for their Governing Bodies. 

Financial Implications 

13. APPOINTMENT OF LEAD GOVERNING BODY PRACTITIONER: 

Responsibilities: 
 

• Support for key consultation events; 

• Mentor and support Governing Bodies (including headteachers and chair of 
governors); 

• Provide training for individual Governing Bodies, school clusters, networks and 
regions, e.g. Governing Body roles and responsibilities, statutory developments, 
performance management, monitoring and evaluation; 

• Co-ordinate local and area training; 

• Quality assure Governing Body working practices; 

• Support Governing Body acquisition of “Governor Mark”; 

• Support Governing Body preparation for Ofsted Inspections; 

• Advise on Governing Body recruitment; 

• Liaise with Diocesan Education Officers and other partners in the locality; 

• Support the development of Governing Bodies in response to the new organisation of 
schools (e.g. federations, amalgamations, all through schools etc); 

• Contribute to the development of Governor Services guidance, publications, website, 

57



 6 

etc., 
 

 
Costings: 

 
Professional Appointment: (e.g. Seconded Headteacher): 
3 x 1 day per week (term time only) x 38 weeks = 114 days 
@ ISP.L13 (+ on costs)     = £20,300 
Indicative travel at 40p per mile     = £     800 

Sub Total £21,100 
 
14   APPOINTMENT OF LEAD CLERKING PRACTITIONERS 

         Responsibilities: 

• Induction and mentoring of new clerks; 

• Provide training for local area clerks; 

• Quality assure the work of Governing Body clerks; 

• Provide temporary/relief clerking service as necessary; 

• Advise on compliance with current and proposed legislation; 

• Advise on local area recruitment; 

• Support preparation for Ofsted Inspections; 

• Contribute to the development of Governor Services guidance, publications etc; 

• Represent Governor Services at appropriate regional/national meetings and 
conferences as required. 

 
Costings: 

 
      1 Experienced Secondary School and 2 Primary School Clerks; 
      3 x 1 day per week (term time only) x 38 weeks = 114 days 
       HC5, £9.79 per hour (+ on costs)     =         £11,000 

Indicative travel at 40p per mile     = £     800 
            Sub  Total   £11,800 
      

Appointment of Lead Practitioner     = £21,100 
Resource costs (i.e. training materials, conference fees, 
Publications etc.)       = £  2,000 

 
                            SUB TOTAL     £34,900 
 
15.   ADMINISTRATIVE SUPPORT 

Administrative Assistant – 2 days per week at Grade HC3 
 (term time only) x 38 weeks       = £4,400.40 

 
Resources: 
Upgrading I.T. software      = £2,500 

 
Budget: 

      Hiring Venue and Trainers      =          £ 2,500 
Croner Subscription for legislation updates    =          £ 1,537.65 
Membership of the National Governors Association   =          £   200 
Administrator’s Salary       =          £19,427 

      Additional contingency      =          £ 4,000  

58



 7 

 
       TOTAL                        £69,465.05 

Funding request : £70,000 

 

Legal Implications   

16 As stated previously in this report Herefordshire Governor Services needs to expand to enable 
Herefordshire Children’s Services to further support school governors’ and develop the service and 
effectiveness in line with national guidance and to meet all statutory requirements from this guidance 
and legislation. 

Consultees  

17 In compiling this report Governor Services consulted with Herefordshire Association of 
Governors which includes an Executive Committee of many long standing and experienced 
Governors.   

Appendices 

18 None 

Background Papers 

None 

                                                                                                  

59



60



E:\MODERNGOV\Data\AgendaItemDocs\8\4\0\AI00018048\290909forumreportGovernorsAppendix0.doc 

APPENDIX 1  

Summary of Current Management , Duties and Responsibilities: 

 Governor Services is managed through the School Improvement Service (SIS).  The SIS 
manager’s role and responsibilities include: 

• Co-ordination of professional input into the service 

• Establishment of governor training programmes 

• Maintaining professional knowledge and expertise 

• Ensuring national guidance and legislation is adhered to 

• Attending governing body meetings 

• Development of professional support 

• School Contact Inspectors also offer guidance and support to their schools’ 
governing bodies. 

There is one full-time post within the current service.  As service administrator the role and 
responsibilities include: 

• To provide administrative support to Governing Services in relation to appointments 
and general advice to 1500 Governors in Herefordshire schools. 

• To provide administrative and procedural advice to Clerks and Chairs of 104 
Governing Bodies, especially helping struggling or new clerks with practical advice to 
enable them to achieve their responsibilities. 

• To regularly check websites for legislative updates and determine what is 
appropriate for distribution to appropriate officer(s). 

• To collate and distribute the Governor Training Programme on a termly basis. 

• To clerk various committees set up by the Directorate and to advise on procedural 
issues and keep the terms of reference under review. 

• To clerk special meetings of governors where serious complaints have been made 
and difficult issues have arisen. 

• To produce and maintain a list of schools and distribute termly. 

• Planning of school terms and holidays in consultation with schools and other L.A’s 
and produce a report for consideration by Scrutiny Committee.  Attend meetings of 
West Midlands authorities. 

• To represent the authority on West Midlands COGS and attend regular meetings of 
West Midlands authorities and report back to officers. 

• To update Governing Body guidance notes in accordance with national guidance, 
statutory requirements or local developments.  

• To administer the procedure for the appointment of LA governors following liaison 
with councillors regarding their nominations. 

• To respond to telephone enquiries from Headteachers, Governors, Clerks to the 
Governors, Chairs of Governors, LA Officers, Elected Members and members of the 
public providing advice and guidance on procedural and other matters. 

• Prepare the termly governor training programme in liaison with the relevant officers 
and arrange for printing and distribution to all Governors. 

• To develop the governors section of the Children’s Services website to disseminate 

61



E:\MODERNGOV\Data\AgendaItemDocs\8\4\0\AI00018048\290909forumreportGovernorsAppendix0.doc 

and discuss documentation, data, current issues and events. 

 

• To oversee and administer the mentor programme for new Chairs of Governors and 
Clerks to Governing Bodies. 

• To organise training and briefings, where relevant, for the Improvement and 
Inclusion Service and Children’s Services staff. 

 

 

62



Herefordshire Schools Forum – Work Programme 2009/10 
 
 

  

                               29 September 2009     2pm  Brockington 

Officer Reports 
 
 
 

• Governor Services 
 

• Schools Budget 
 

• Budget Working Group 
 

• Dedicated Schools Grant 

 
 

 

                                7 December 2009     2pm  Brockington 

Officer Reports 
 
 
 
 
 
 

• Delegation of Banded 
Funding 2009/10 - Review of 
the Representation of the 
Funding for Inclusion Group 
(Minute No.93) 

 

• Section 52 Budget Statement 
 

• Early Years Funding 
Formula 

 

• Schools Finance Scheme 
 

• Service Level Agreements - 
Charging Proposals (Minute 
No.68) 

 

• Schools Library Service 
 

  

12 January 2010  2pm Brockington 

Officer Reports 
 
 
 
 

 

 

1 February 2010   9.30am Brockington 

Officer Reports 
 
 
 
 

 

  

AGENDA ITEM 10

63



23 February 2010   2pm Brockington 

  

September 2010 ( meeting date not yet fixed) 

Officer Reports 
 

• Performance Outcomes 
Against Grant Spends 

  

  

 

64


	Agenda
	comment
	HEREFORDMAP
	FIREBROCK

	4 MINUTES
	Schools Finance
	Schools Finance Presentation - Appendix 1
	Schools Finance Presentation - Appendix 2
	Schools Finance Presentation - Appendix 3
	Schools Finance Presentation - Appendix 4
	Schools Finance Presentation - Appendix 5

	6 BUDGET WORKING GROUP
	7 SCHOOL BALANCES
	8 DEDICATED SCHOOLS GRANT
	29.09.09 DSG Budget Outturn - Appendix

	9 DEVELOPING CAPACITY IN HEREFORDSHIRE GOVERNOR SERVICES
	29.09.09 forum report Governors - Appendix

	10 WORK PROGRAMME 2009/10

